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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NRIEM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping

Mr. Lam Ka Po

Mr. Cheung Ka Ho

Mr. Liu Min

Mr. Zhou Pei Feng

Ms. Chan Sau Chi (resigned on 1 October 2012)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Lo Ka Leong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. Leung Tai Chiu

Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter

Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsoi Kin Lung

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications Co. Ltd.

China Construction Bank Corporation

Citibank, N.A.

DBS Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

The Bank of Toyko-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A &1& #t

LEGAL ADVISORS

King & Wood Mallesons

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O. Box 309
Ugland House
Grand Cayman
KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE

OF BUSINESS

2nd Floor, Harbour View 1

No. 12 Science Park East Avenue
Phase 2 Hong Kong Science Park
Shatin

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
IN HONG KONG

Tricor Investor Services Limited
26/F., Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

SR
Revenue =E 2|
EBITDA RMBRRZ -~ BiE - FER
BeEADERI
Profit before tax BRAB A1 58 F
Net profit attributable to owners KATEEAEGHF
of the Company
Basic earnings per share BREXRAEF
Full-year dividend per share BREERE
— Interim dividend per share — R ERRE
— Proposed final dividend per share —EHEREREBERE
Dividend payout ratio RELLZE
Net asset value per share BREERE
Net gearing FEMELE
Revenue

E

HK$ Million
BEET
13,500
12,000
10,500
9,000 8,472
7,500
6,131
6,000
4,660
4,500
2,973
3,000

1,500

13,055 13,205

12,483

0

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

*Excluding:

2011: share-based payments of HK$69.1 million

2010: gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments of HK$156.4

million

2009: the discount on acquisition of HK$11.2 million and impairment
loss on available-for-sale investments of HK$156.4 million

4 KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED E/EHE E Rz B R 2 Al

Year ended

31 December 2012
BE-E—=fF
TZA=Zt+—HLEFE
HK$ MillionE &8t
12,483.2

2,161.1
1,345.4

1,163.9

HK38.8 centsiE{ll
HK17.0 centsj&ll
HK5.0 centsi&{l
HK12.0 centsjEll
44%
HK$3.943& 5t

16%

Year ended

31 December 2011
HE-T—%F
+ZA=+—HLFE
HK$ Million & &8 7T

13,205.0

2,417.1

1,634.5

1,325.0

HK44.2 cents AL

HK15.0 centsi& il

HK10.0 centsy# (Il

HK5.0 centsiB Il

34%

HK$3.587%8 7T

13%

Net profit attributable to owners of the
Company

RRFEFEABGAF]

HKS$ Million
HEBT

2,400
2,100
1,800
1,500
1,200

900

600

300

1,037 1,078

388

1,394*

1,177 1,164

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHE

BUSINESS REVIEW

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am delighted to report to our
shareholders that Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) delivered resilient results for the financial
year ended 31 December 2012. The business operating environment was
highly competitive during the year. Against the strong headwind caused by
the European sovereign debt crisis and slow US economic recovery, overall
demand for electronics products was soft during the year. In addition, copper
prices fell against those of the previous year which caused a decline in the
average selling price for laminates. The encouraging growth was in the
domestic China market. During the year, the Group enjoyed a remarkable
market share gain in the China domestic market. Group revenue marginally
decreased by 5% to HK$12,483 million with sales denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) sales accounting for around 50% of total revenue.

RO

AANERRESFS  MARSLBRLIM - 2
EREERERARAR (AR RENEBE AR
(EEDREZE_T——F+-_A=+—HIE
MRFEARFRRNES -  — T —FEEK
BIRIRFME - REBNZRER B NE
BEBEEREEMYE BREFERBLT
B o pHMRAEBLLEFRMEE  ERFHER
FE T - AfFAHERE TS RTGE
SERDIERDETS - ARBEEREERE
BEERIES0% - RE 2 FEEFEMUKESNE
—AZTHENT=E&8ET -

Turnover Breakdown by Product % %5

FY2012
—E-_HEHHREE

FY2011
T FHHFE

Glass Epoxy Laminates

RAPWBHEFRER

Paper Laminates

MERER

* Upstream Materials including copper foil, epoxy resin, glass fabric and bleached
kraft paper

@ Properties mainly including rental income derived

# Others comprises drilling services and PVB

Upstream Materials*

Lt

Others”
Hip

Properties®

FEHE®
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT F s

BUSINESS REVIEW (oinueq)

Although shipment volume and laminate capacity utilization improved in the
second half of 2012 against first half of the year, production capacity was
still not fully utilized. Rising operating costs impacted the Group’s operating
margin. Despite these circumstances, the Group continued to maintain a
robust balance sheet and delivered profitable results with net profit down
12% to HK$1,163.9 million.

In addition, the Group acquired a commercial property — 90 Fenchurch Street
in London, England in October 2012. With an aggregate gross floor area
(“GFA”) of 8,000 square metres, the property enjoying 100% occupancy rate,
annual rental income generated from this property will be around HK$40
million. At end of 2012, the Group owned a land bank with gross floor area
of approximately 1.3 million square metres located at prime locations in cities
such as Kunshan and Jiangyin in China.

The Board proposes a final dividend of HK12 cents per share subject to
shareholders’ approval. Together with the interim dividend of HK5 cents per
share paid in September 2012, this will constitute a total dividend of HK17
cents per share for the full year, representing a payout ratio of 44%.

S AT

G DAL L

Construction work for the Jiangmen laminates plant, Guangdong province has been completed.

SEHMZEREIFZHERRT »
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT F s

PERFORMANCE

Laminates shipment volume and capacity utilization improved in 2012 against
2011, but average selling prices showed a downtrend against the previous
year. Consolidated revenue of the Group was HK$12,483 million. Sales
volume increased 3% against last year with average monthly shipment of 8.09
million square metres. Revenue from composite epoxy material laminates
(*CEM”) and glass epoxy laminates (“FR4”) accounted for 58% of Group
turnover while paper laminates sales accounted for 20% in 2012. The balance
mainly comprised sales of upstream material and others. Against a backdrop
of fierce market competition in 2012, decline in copper price caused a
drop in the average selling price of laminates. Furthermore, operating cost
increases with under utilization of capacity during the year have impacted our
margin. Gross profit margin declined to 15.4%. Earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”) decreased by 11% to HK$2,161.1
million.

Despite operating costs increases during the year, distribution cost was
maintained at a similar level as last year as a result of operational efficiency
improvement and strict costs control. Administrative costs were HK$419.6
million, marginally up 1% against previous year. Finance costs remained level
with 2011 at around HK$94 million. Effective tax rate increased to 13.3%
from 11.5% last year as PRC tax holiday for certain subsidiaries of the Group
expired in the current year.

EHRRR

T FEEEMHEEREEFARHR
EFEERMEABRFHEETR - SFEZEEE
¥wA—BA-THENT=ZGESBTL §AF
HHEEANBTNEFTH K HEERESF
EF3% - EAEMBERER([CEM]) RIRSR
WREEEFRER(FRAD R -_E——F(he
B ¥R EA8% KBNS ¥
FA1520%  EHFEA EHDRREMER
ZHE T ——FMERFAR - WEEE
VEERERS  KENABFELR - NMEER
RS EERAERRE RS EEEFNETH®ZE
15.4% « AMBFE - FE - JTEREH 2
BRI THNM%E—+—BAT—E—TE8T -

FREEXEABD - 2 HKANREFRKME
B R E R R BT E B AR Bl A AR Y
R o ITHAANE—THAEATESET
BEFEM EA1%  BMEXNRNRBEFHFLH
ATFHEESBET - EEEMH AT A RRBE
BRFATE  AURBERBEHEAFN11.5%
HEARFH13.3% ©

The Group also plans to expand the production capacity of Jiangyin laminates plant further within the current year.

TTHRE TR BTN F IR INERE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT F s

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our consolidated financial and liquidity position remained robust. As at 31
December 2012, net current assets and current ratio of the Group were
approximately HK$7,977.2 million (31 December 2011 — HK$7,280.4 million)
and 3.46 (31 December 2011 — 3.61) respectively.

The net working capital cycle increased to 114 days as at 31 December 2012
from 100 days as at 31 December 2011 on the following key metrics:

- Inventories, in terms of stock turnover days, decreased to 44 days
as the Group tightened control over inventory — inventory value
decreased by 9% against last year end (31 December 2011 — 46
days).

- Trade receivables including amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, in
terms of debtors turnover days, increased to 103 days (31 December
2011 — 94 days).

- Trade and bills payables including amounts due to fellow subsidiaries,
in terms of creditors turnover days decreased to 33 days (31
December 2011 — 40 days).

The Group’s net gearing ratio (ratio of interest bearing borrowings net of
cash and cash equivalents to total equity) increased to 16% (31 December
2011 = 13%). In 2012, the Group invested HK$544 million in new production
capacities and HK$1,012 million in its property business. With an experienced
professional management team and a solid business foundation with sound
financial strength, the Group is confident that these investments will deliver
attractive returns to shareholders in future. The ratio of bank borrowings
between short term and long term stood at 30%:70% (31 December 2011:
16%:84%). The Group successfully arranged a HK$3 billion 4-year term
syndicated loan in May 2012 which gives the Group additional financial
strength to capture future business opportunities in the market. About 6% of
the bank borrowings was denominated in RMB and the rest in Hong Kong or
US dollars.

The Group continued to adopt a prudent financial management policy.
The Group had not entered into any type of derivative financial instruments
throughout the year. There was no material foreign exchange exposure
for the Group during the year under review. The Group’s revenue, mostly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, RMB and US dollars, was fairly matched
with the currency requirement of operating expenses.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £ EHRE

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a workforce of approximately
8,900 (31 December 2011: 8,700). In addition to offering competitive salary
packages, the Group grants discretionary bonuses to eligible employees
based on its overall financial achievement and their individual performance.

PROSPECTS

Customer order intake showed signs of strong momentum at the onset of
2013. Management is confident of the growth prospects of the domestic
market in China. The Chinese government will continue to re-engineer
domestic economic growth by encouraging urbanization with the aim of
narrowing the living standard gap between rural and urban residents. Demand
for electronic products, especially smart phones and high-end consumer
products, is expected to maintain robust growth as the disposable income of
Chinese consumers continues to rise. This would definitely be a positive driver
for laminate demand. The Group will allocate more resources into business
development in the domestic China market in order to further advance our
market share.

The Group continues to invest in production capacities expansion. Currently
monthly capacity of the Group has reached 10 million square metres. We will
continue to invest in product mix enhancement to expand our customer base.
Construction work for the Jiangmen laminates plant, Guangdong province
has been completed. The Group also plans to expand the production
capacity of Jiangyin laminates plant further within the current year. In order
to capture business opportunities for thin and high-performance laminates,
the Group will continue to expand production capacity for thin laminates in
southern and eastern China.

The Group’s first residential project, Jiangyin Kingboard Yu Garden Phase |
in Jiangsu Province has made good progress in its pre-sale. The project is
scheduled for completion in 2014. Our key investment properties in China
and London will continue to generate stable rental income stream for the
Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers, banks, the management
and employees for their unreserved support to the Group in the past financial
year.

Cheung Kwok Wa
Chairman
Hong Kong, 8 March 2013
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DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES
EENSMERABZERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Wa, aged 49, is an executive Director and the Chairman
of the Company. He is a brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung and Mr. Cheung
Kwok Ping, both being executive Directors and an uncle of Mr. Cheung Ka
Ho, an executive Director. Mr. Cheung joined Kingboard Chemical Holdings
Limited (“KCHL”) in 1988 and has over 24 years’ experience in the marketing
of a wide range of industrial products. He is responsible for the overall
strategic planning of the Group and sets the general direction and goals for
the Group. Mr. Cheung was appointed as an executive Director in July 2006.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Keung, aged 60, is an executive Director and the
Managing Director of the Company. He is a brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping, both being executive Directors, and an uncle of
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho, an executive Director. Mr. Cheung joined KCHL in 1991
and has over 21 years’ experience in the laminate industry. He is responsible
for the overall implementation of the strategic plans and goals of the Group.
Mr. Cheung was appointed as an executive Director in July 20086.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ping, aged 52, is an executive Director. He is a brother
of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa and Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung, both being executive
Directors, and an uncle of Mr. Cheung Ka Ho, an executive Director. Mr.
Cheung joined KCHL in 1988 and has over 24 years’ experience in marketing.
He is mainly responsible for the Group’s marketing operations and is also the
general manager of the paper laminate factories in Fogang and Shaoguan,
the PRC. Mr. Cheung is also an executive director of Kingboard Copper Foil
Holdings Limited (“KBCF”), a 64.57%-owned subsidiary of the Company as
at the end of reporting period and whose shares are listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX”). Mr. Cheung was appointed as
an executive Director in May 2006.

Mr. LAM Ka Po, aged 56, is an executive Director. Mr. Lam is a co-founder
of KCHL and has over 24 years’ experience in the sales and distribution of
laminates. Mr. Lam is also the chairman and executive director of KBCF. He
was appointed as an executive Director in November 2006.
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DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHES EF ke R EEBAB 2 EFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (oninued)

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Ho, aged 29, is an executive Director. Mr. Cheung is the
nephew of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung and Mr. Cheung
Kwok Ping, all being executive Directors. Mr. Cheung joined KCHL in 2004
and is involved in the laminate marketing operations for the southern region of
China. He was appointed as an executive Director in July 20086.

Mr. LIU Min, aged 44, is an executive Director. He joined KCHL in 1998. Mr.
Liu graduated from Harbin University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Chemical
Engineering. Prior to joining KCHL, he had over 7 years’ experience in the
copper foil industry. He was appointed as an executive Director in November
2006.

Mr. ZHOU Pei Feng, aged 44, is an executive Director. He joined KCHL
in 1999 and is the general manager of four glass epoxy laminate facilities
in Shenzhen, Fogang, Jiangmen and Jiangyin, the PRC. Mr. Zhou holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Mechanical Engineering from the Chongaging University
and a Master’s Degree in Material Processing Engineering from Jilin Industrial
University (now known as Jilin University). He was appointed as an executive
Director in November 2006.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LO Ka Leong, aged 39, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Lo is also a
member of the audit committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Professional Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lo joined KCHL in May 1999 and is in charge of KCHL'’s
company secretarial work. Prior to joining KCHL, he was an accountant at
an international accounting firm. Mr. Lo was appointed as a non-executive
Director in July 2006.
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DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHES EF ke R EEBAB 2 EFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 61, joined as an independent non-
executive Director in November 2006. Mr. Chan is also the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company, and a member of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Chan is the
chairman of Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Mr. Chan is a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings Limited since
2007, as well as an independent non-executive director of Starlite Holdings
Limited since 1993, Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited since 2007, and Tse Sui
Luen Jewellery (International) Limited since 2010, all of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan formerly was a professional
city planner with government bodies in Hong Kong and Canada. He obtained
a Bachelor’s degree in Arts and a Master’s degree in City Planning from the
University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business
Administration, and is bestowed as Honorary Fellow from Lingnam University.
He is also a member of the Political Consultative Committee of Nanshan
District, Shenzhen in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Chan acts as the
Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing and serves on the
executive committee of the Hong Kong Retail Management Association, the
general committee of the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong, the Adviser
of the Quality Tourism Service Association, and the Chairman of the Business
Enterprise Management Centre of the Hong Kong Management Association.
Mr. Chan is also a board member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board and a
member of the Business Facilitation Advisory Committee appointed by the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Mr. LEUNG Tai Chiu, aged 66, joined as an independent non-executive
Director in November 2006. Mr. Leung is also the chairman of the audit
committee of the Company, and a member of the remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Leung graduated from the
Hong Kong University in 1969. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He has broad experience in accounting
and auditing matters, having worked in the auditing profession for over 30
years, 20 years of which he served as a partner. Mr. Leung retired from
PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2005. Mr. Leung was the President of Lions
Club of Victoria in 1986 and 1998 and a director of Yan Oi Tong from 1995
to 1997. He is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is
also an independent non-executive director of the companies listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange, namely Eva Precision Industrial Holdings
Limited and G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. MOK Yiu Keung, Peter, aged 61, joined as an independent non-executive
Director in November 2006. Mr. Mok is also a member of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company. Mr.
Mok is the chairman of Biu Chun Watch Hands & Parts Manufacturers
Limited and has over 32 years of experience in the manufacturing industry.
Mr. Mok pursued a Master’s degree at Yanshan University in 2003. He served
as the Vice Chairman of the Watch Parts & Equipment Exhibition in 1997
and the Chairman in 1998 and 1999. He was the Vice President and later
the Executive Vice President of the Professional Validation Council of Hong
Kong Industries from 1999 to 2001 and from 2001 to 2003, respectively. Mr.
Mok joined the Hong Kong St. John Ambulance in 1998 as the Command
President of Dental Command. Mr. Mok is currently the vice chairman of the
China Horologe Association, the Honorary vice President of Shenzhen Watch
& Clock Association and the President of the Hong Kong Rangers Football
Club.

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP, aged 61, joined as an independent
non-executive Director in May 2011. Mr. Ip is also the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company, and a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Ip graduated
from the University of Hong Kong with a degree in Social Sciences. Mr. Ip
joined the Hong Kong Government in November 1973 and was promoted
to the rank of Director of Bureau in April 1997. He worked in the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government (“HKSAR Government”) as a
Principal Official from July 1997 to June 2007. Senior positions held by Mr.
Ip in the past include Commissioner of Insurance, Commissioner for Labour,
Secretary for Economic Services and Secretary for Financial Services. Mr. Ip
took up the position of Secretary for Economic Development and Labour on
1 July 2002. His portfolio in respect of economic development covered air
and sea transport, logistics development, tourism, energy, postal services,
meteorological services, competition and consumer protection. He was
also responsible for labour policies including matters relating to employment
services, labour relations and employees’ rights. Mr. Ip retired from the
HKSAR Government in July 2007. Mr. Ip received the Gold Bauhinia Star
award from the HKSAR Government in 2001, and is an unofficial Justice
of the Peace. Mr. Ip ceased to be an independent non-executive Director
of Yangtze China Investment Limited at 31 December 2012 due to the
company’s decision of delisting from the London Exchange. Mr. Ip served as
an independent non-executive director on the board of PICC Property and
Casualty Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, from
17 January 2011 to 1 November 2011. Mr. Ip also serves as independent
non-executive director on the boards of several companies on the main board
of the Stock Exchange, namely China Resources Cement Holdings Limited,
Synergis Holdings Limited, Lai Sun Development Company Limited, Viva
China Holdings Limited, Goldpoly New Energy Holdings Limited, Luk Fook
Holdings (International) Limited and Milan Station Holdings Limited.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHANG Guo Qiang, age 45, joined KCHL in 2002 and is the general
manager of the glass fabric factories in Shenzhen and Lianzhou, the PRC.
Mr. Chang graduated from Hunan Chang Sha University with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Textiles. Prior to joining KCHL, he had over 14 years’ experience in
the glass fabric industry.

Mr. HU Guo Liang, age 56, joined KCHL in 2000 and is the general manager
of the glass yarn factory in Panyu Nansha, the PRC. Mr. Hu graduated from
the East China University of Science and Technology with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Material Science Engineering. Prior to joining KCHL, he had over 19
years’ experience in the glass yarn industry.

Mr. TSOI Kin Lung, aged 37, joined KCHL in November 20083. Prior to that,
he was an accountant at an international accounting firm. Mr. Tsoi is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is in charge of the company secretarial work and
financial management of the Group.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are pleased to present their report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 50.

An interim dividend of HK5 cents per share was paid to the shareholders of
the Company during the year. The Directors now recommend the payment of
a final dividend of HK12 cents per share to the shareholders on the register
of members of the Company on 14 May 2013, and the retention of the
remaining profits in the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued share capital of the
Company are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries of the Company’s listed securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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RESERVES

Details of the movements during the year in the reserves of the Group are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 54.

In addition to the retained profits of the Company, the share premium
and special reserve of the Company are also available for distribution to
shareholders provided that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

At 31 December 2012, the sum of retained profits, the share premium

and the special reserve of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$7,426,969,000.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2012,
resulting in an increase in fair value of approximately HK$1,840,000 which
has been credited directly to the consolidated income statement.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Expenditure of approximately HK$544,489,000 was incurred during the year
primarily to expand the production capacity of the Group. Details of all the
changes during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are
set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DONATIONS B

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totalling FR - AEBEHZEENEMEREY
approximately HK$3,326,000. 3,326,000/ 7T °

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE ESEZEREEZREESY

CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were: FARBEEAREAHILZ2EEZ0T ¢
Executive Directors: HITES

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman) REELAE (L)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director) SRR S A (EFARATIE)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping KRB

Mr. Lam Ka Po MRE R4

Mr. Cheung Ka Ho RRFEE

Mr. Liu Min 2geE

Mr. Zhou Pei Feng [EIEIE S A

Ms. Chan Sau Chi (resigned on 1 October 2012) BREZNA(RZZT—=F+A—HEHT)
Non-executive Director: FHITES :

Mr. Lo Ka Leong ER L E

Independent non-executive Directors: BYEHITES :

Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRAG S

Mr. Leung Tai Chiu PEEHBE L

Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter BiRos kAt

Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen LS pap e
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

In accordance with Article 130 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Cheung Kwok Keung, Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping, being executive Directors, Mr.
Lo Ka Leong, being non-executive Director, and Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter
being an independent non-executive Director, will retire from directorship by
rotation and will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company regarding his appointment which shall continue subject to the
terms and conditions thereof and such terms as may be agreed between the
parties from time to time. Each service contract will continue thereafter until
terminated by not less than one month’s notice in writing served by either
party on the other.

The non-executive Director and each of the independent non-executive
Directors (except Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen, who was appointed by the
Board as an independent non-executive Director on 4 May 2011) had
been appointed for an initial term of two years commencing in November
2006. In addition, the appointment of Mr. Lo Ka Leong as a non-executive
Director will continue after the initial term unless terminated by three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other. The appointment of the
independent non-executive Directors will continue after the initial term unless
otherwise agreed between the parties. All Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

Biographical details of the above Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Biographies” on pages 10 to 14.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company has a service contract which is not terminable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES EEZRERE

As at 31 December 2012, the interests of the Directors (including the RIEBE——F+-A=1+—H EF(BEARQ
Managing Director of the Company) and their associates in the shares, ANESAKLIE)RBEEZHE ANRKAT RE
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated LB (EERBEALBEEMNN([EA KRS
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures &40 1) EEXVER) Z %D ~ MR D EEHET - %
Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company BEARNBIRIEEASNHEEIERIGEFEEZE
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company SO Frrcsk 2 RS - SRE E BT AESRE

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities 1THELERT FHPEAETRE ME AR D T) &8RP

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows: IR

Long position RR

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (“Shares”) (a) AATESREMECIGET2EZER (KR
% 1)

Approximate
percentage of

the issued
share capital
Number of of the Company
issued shares ERAT
Name of Director Capacity held BEITRA
BEEgE ERtE e RITROEA ZBHBEDE
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa' Beneficial owner 6,334,000 0.211
SR B EE S A EmfAA
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho Beneficial owner 89,000 0.003
RRFRFE EmfEAA
Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter? Beneficial owner 200,000 0.007
Rigog s k2 EmfEAA
Notes: BT
1. 75,000 KLHL’s shares were held by his spouse. 1. 75,000 fE 32 JE 1 8 1R PR {7 R EL AL (8 4%
ﬁ o
2. 200,000 KLHL'’s shares were held by his spouse. 2. 200,000/% 38 E & B iRk Ak (D A E AL B 4F
ﬁ o
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (coniinued)

Long position (continued)

(b) Share options of the Company (“Share Options”)

EECRMDER

RE(®)
(b) ARREEERECELERE]

Interest in underlying shares

Name of Director Capacity pursuant to share options
EEME ERME BRBREETHEROER
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner 12,500,000
SREIEE & BEnEAA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner 11,500,000
SREIE BEnEAA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner 10,000,000
KRBT BEnEAA
Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner 10,000,000
MREFRE BEnEAA
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho Beneficial owner 10,000,000
RRFEE BEnEAA

(c) Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each of Kingboard
Laminates Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

() AL2AZERAZHEQTZEREER
FRAFRSREE1IBIZERERE
ERAD

Number of non-voting
deferred shares held

Name of Director Capacity FISEREREL

EEpE EREME KRB E
(Note)
(=)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner 1,058,000

REIEE LA EREBA

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner 529,000

RElsg S A EREBA

Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner 952,200

SREIF S A EREBA

Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner 581,900

MEELE EREBA

Note:  None of the non-voting deferred shares of Kingboard Laminates Limited are
held by the Group. Such deferred shares carry no rights to receive notice
of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of Kingboard Laminates
Limited and have practically no rights to dividends or to participate in any

distribution on winding up.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (onineg EEZ R ERR )

Long position (continued) E&um)
(d) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of KCHL, the ultimate holding (d) AATRAERATERSLISRER
company of the Company

0,10 B TZZER

Approximate
percentage of

Number the issued
of issued share capital
ordinary of KCHL
shares held HEE{LET
Name of Director Capacity Fride 1T BRITRA
EEME RS EERROEE ZHRNEDH
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa' Beneficial owner 4,664,000 0.546
SR BUEE S A BEmlEB A
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner 530,352 0.062
SREIE BEmlEB A
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping? Beneficial owner 2,918,653 0.341
SR BT 5 2 BEmlEB A
Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner 2,431,134 0.284
MREFRE BEmlEB A
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho Beneficial owner 320,000 0.037
RRFHE BEmlER A
Mr. Liu Min8 Beneficial owner 176,500 0.021
Bl Gty BEmlEB A
Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter* Beneficial owner 15,000 0.002
S RoR A BEmlEB A
Notes: BffeE -
1. 12,000 KCHL's shares were held by his spouse. 1. 12,0000%3258(c TR  H BB A -
2. 30,000 KCHL's shares were held by his spouse. . 30,0008 E5E L T R AL BB E -
3. 176,500 KCHL's shares were held by his spouse. 3. 176,500 % & 8 TR ) R HER B 45
4. 15,000 KCHL'’s shares were held by his spouse. 4. :ﬁsyoooﬁgjg{blﬁﬁ@ RERERES -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (coniinuedq)

Long position (continued)

(e)

U]

22

Share options of KCHL

EECRMDER

RE(®)

() BEELIZEBEBRE

Interest in

underlying shares

of KCHL
pursuant to

share options

Name of Director Capacity BERBREET
EEME RS Bt THERD R
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner 2,440,000

REIsR A

ESlEAA

Ordinary shares (“EEIC Shares”) in Elec & Eltek International
Company Limited (“EEIC”), a fellow subsidiary of the Company

() ARBERAMBERRMEARZERERR
AF(TEEIC]) 2 EBR (TEEICAR T 1)

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Number of share capital

issued EEIC of EEIC

Shares held {HEEIC

Name of Director Capacity FrisB 81T BEITRA

EEpE FERMtE EEICR 3 8B 2N B

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner 706,200 0.378
SREIZE S & BEnEAA

Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner 500,000 0.268
SRE A EmfiaA

Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner 486,600 0.261
MREFLE BEnEAA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors (including the
Managing Director of the Company) nor their respective associate,
had any interests or short position in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at 31 December 2012.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES BEER##SESE>2H
OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company, Br ESUREESN - ARE] - HIERR QRIS EEM
its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party B B8 X @) 2% [R) 2R B B8 8 ) A 4 P 1 {n] B P 4R 4
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of LN AT BUEESE R AKRAT
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body SR EHALE AE B 2 IRk iEH mER °
corporate.

SHARE OPTIONS BRBERE

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company (including the NN ZBEEREAE 2B (BETEE -
exercise price, exercise period and vesting period) are set out in note 36 to TR EBE) SN GA IS REN 36 o
the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the share options during the year: TRIFEFRELERENERN &) -
Outstanding
Outstanding as at
as at 31.12.2012
1.1.2012 Granted  Exercised Transferred  Cancelled Lapsed R-Z—-=F
RZIE-ZF& during during between  during the during +=8
—A—-B the year theyear categories year the year =t+-H

HATHE REARE RERTE BHIEEE REAEHE RERXR HRTE

Category 1: Directors 18- EF
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa REZELE 12,500,000 - - - - - 12,500,000
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung KRB E A 11,500,000 - - - - - 11,500,000
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping REF A 10,000,000 - - - - - 10,000,000
Mr. Lam Ka Po HRELE 10,000,000 - - - - - 10,000,000
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho RRELE 10,000,000 - - - - - 10,000,000
Ms. Chan Sau Chi (Note) B A/ MA () 10,000,000 - - (10,000,000 - - -
64,000,000 - - (10,000,000) - - 54,000,000
Category 2: Employess FME: BE 36,000,000 - - 10,000,000 - - 46,000,000
Total all categories FEERIEE 100,000,000 - - - - - 100,000,000
Note: ~ Ms. Chan Sau Chi resigned as an executive director of the Company on 1 October MizE : BALNMAR-ZT——F1+A—HEFLRQTH
2012. TEE-
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2012, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than
the interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors (including the
Managing Director of the Company), the following shareholders had notified
the Company of their relevant interests in the issued share capital of the
Company.

EECERGHNRR

ARTF - HERATR - BRHTEQRRMER
BIBLERET AR F E R A& S B D
AREMMEFTERAAEBEFEAE R ZEKR
B# e

FERR

R-ZE——F+-F=+—H BEAQFEZ
BHEME KN EIIEAETE 2 FBREER
METEsE M ENFEBEE TER(REARRA]
ZEEBEIR) 2w TIRREMNEAR
A ERARRBEBITIRA 2 iR

Long position A
Shares [::8vil
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Number of share capital
issued shares of the Company
held ER N
Name of shareholder Notes  Nature of interest T ERTRAZ
REEHE Mizz  HERME BRBEE BRBEDE
Hallgain Management Limited (@), (b)  Interest of controlled 2,192,916,500 73.10
(“Hallgain”) corporations
RIS AR E R
KCHL Beneficial owner 115,135,500 3.84
BE(ET EmBEAA
(c) Interest of controlled 2,077,781,000 69.26
corporations
RIS AR E R
Jamplan (BVI) Limited (“Jamplan”) Beneficial owner 1,790,000,000 59.67
EmBEAA
(d) Interest of controlled 287,781,000 9.59
corporation
RIS AR E R
Capital Research and Management Investment manager 177,205,851 5.91

Company EEIE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (ntinueq)

Long position (continued)
Notes:

(a) At 31 December 2012, (i) no shareholder of Hallgain was entitled to exercise, or
control the exercise of, directly or indirectly, one-third or more of the voting power
at general meetings of Hallgain, and Hallgain and its directors were not accustomed
to act in accordance with any shareholder’s direction; and (i) Messrs. Cheung Kwok
Wa, Cheung Kwok Ping and Lam Ka Po, being Directors, are also directors of
Hallgain.

(b) The interests are held by KCHL directly and indirectly. KCHL is owned as to
approximately 34.10% of the entire issued capital of KCHL by Hallgain as at 31
December 2012.

(© The interests are held by Jamplan directly and indirectly. Jamplan is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of KCHL. Mr. Lam Ka Po, being a Director, is also a director of Jamplan.

(d) The interests are indirectly held by Jamplan through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Kingboard Investments Limited (“KIL"). Messrs. Cheung Kwok Wa and Cheung
Kwok Ping, being Directors, are also directors of KIL.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short positions which fall to be disclosed to the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Stock Exchange has made various amendments to the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Former Code”) set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules, and the revised code, namely the “Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report” (the “Code”), became effective
on 1 April 2012. In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has been in
compliance with relevant provisions of the Former Code from 1 January
2012 to 31 March 2012 and the Code from 1 April 2012 to 31 December
2012, save for the deviation that the non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors are not appointed for specific terms pursuant to
paragraph A.4.1 of the Former Code and the Code (as the case may be).
Notwithstanding the aforesaid deviation, all the Directors (including the non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general
meeting in compliance with the Company’s Articles of Association. As such,
the Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting
than those in the Former Code and the Code (as the case may be).

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Director’s securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standards set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Following a
specific enquiry, each Director has confirmed he or she has complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct
regarding Director’s securities transactions adopted by the Company
throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent for the purposes of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s largest customer was KCHL'’s subsidiaries
other than the Company and its subsidiaries (the “KCHL Group”), and the
percentage of sales attributable to the KCHL Group was 13%. The Group’s
second largest customer was Hallgain and its subsidiaries (the “Hallgain
Group”), and the percentage of sales attributable to the Hallgain Group was
8%. The percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
combined was less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue. During the year,
the percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and
the five largest suppliers combined were 11% and 40%, respectively. The
percentage of purchase attributable to KCHL, one of the Group’s five largest
suppliers was 10%.

At 31 December 2012, each of KCHL, a shareholder holding more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital and Hallgain, a controlling shareholder of
KCHL, had beneficial interests in one of the Group’s five largest customers
and suppliers. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates
or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers or
suppliers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In 2012, the Group had the following non-exempt continuing connected
transactions (which are also related party transactions) within the meaning of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(@) Supply Framework Agreement

On 1 April 2011, the Company and Hallgain entered into a supply
framework agreement (the “Supply Framework Agreement”) pursuant
to which the Group agreed to supply copper and laminates to the
Hallgain Group from 1 April 2011 to 31 December 2013. Under the
Supply Framework Agreement, the amount to be supplied is not fixed
but is to be determined and agreed between the parties from time to
time. The actual quantity, specification and price (with reference to the
prevailing market price) of the products under the Supply Framework
Agreement will be subject to the individual orders placed by the
Hallgain Group with the Group.

26 KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED 2B ERIEAR B R A A
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Supply Framework Agreement (continued)

The transactions contemplated under the Supply Framework
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
basis that Hallgain, through its interests in KCHL, is a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and hence a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the Supply Framework Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2012 are set out in the table below. Details of
the Supply Framework Agreement were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 26 April 2011.

Purchase Framework Agreement

On 1 April 2011, the Company and Hallgain entered into a purchase
framework agreement (the “Purchase Framework Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase materials for
production of laminates such as drill bits and machineries from the
Hallgain Group from 1 April 2011 to 31 December 2013. Under the
Purchase Framework Agreement, the amount to be purchased is
not fixed but is to be determined and agreed between the parties
from time to time. The actual quantity, specification and price (with
reference to the prevailing market price) of the products under the
Purchase Framework Agreement will be subject to the individual
orders placed by the Group with the Hallgain Group.

The transactions contemplated under the Purchase Framework
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
basis that Hallgain, through its interests in KCHL, is a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and hence a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the Purchase Framework Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2012 are set out in the table below. Details of
the Purchase Framework Agreement were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 26 April 2011.
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CON N ECTED TRAN SACTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

28

Material Purchase Agreement

On 7 November 2011, the Company and KCHL entered into a
material purchase agreement (the “Material Purchase Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase chemicals including
methanol, formalin, phenol, acetone, phenol resin and caustic
soda and drill bits from the KCHL Group from 1 January 2012 to
31 December 2014. Under the Material Purchase Agreement, the
amount of chemicals and drill bits to be purchased by the Group are
not fixed but are to be determined and agreed between the parties
from time to time. The pricing under the Material Purchase Agreement
is determined in accordance with the then prevailing market prices.

The transactions contemplated under the Material Purchase
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis
that KCHL is the ultimate holding company of the Company and
KCHL and members of the KCHL Group are accordingly connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the Material Purchase Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2012 are set out in the table below. Details of
the Material Purchase Agreement were disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated 30 November 2011.

Material Supply and Service Agreement

On 7 November 2011, the Company and KCHL entered into a
material supply and service agreement (the “Material Supply and
Service Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group agreed to supply
laminate products and related upstream materials (including copper
foil) and to provide drilling services to the KCHL Group from 1 January
2012 to 31 December 2014. Under the Material Supply and Service
Agreement, the amount to be sold and the drilling services to be
provided by the Group are not fixed but are to be determined and
agreed between the parties from time to time. The pricing under the
Material Supply and Service Agreement is determined in accordance
with the then prevailing market prices.

The transactions contemplated under the Material Supply and Service
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis
that KCHL is the ultimate holding company of the Company and
KCHL and members of the KCHL Group are accordingly connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (.ntinued)

(d) Material Supply and Service Agreement (continued)
The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the Material Supply and Service Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in the table below.
Details of the Material Supply and Service Agreement were disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 30 November 2011.

BAERXF @

(d) #RHEERBEHHEE
MR R RS R R T2 2R HEE=
T —F+ A=+ RALFEIFE
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RRBHBEZFBERIARNBHR=
T——F+—A=Z+BZBIRHE -

The Group sold laminates and copper to the
Hallgain Group under the Supply Framework
Agreement

Hallgain£s &

The Group purchased drill bits and machineries
from the Hallgain Group under the Purchase
Framework Agreement

The Group purchased chemicals from the KCHL 74 BRI FIEE B 35 1A)
BEtISERELT

Group under the Material Purchase Agreement

EEh

The Group sold laminates and related upstream 7<% B4R 5 41 L fE 2
RS HEEEEt TEE
SHEBRME IR X AER LR

materials and provide drilling services to the
KCHL Group under the
Material Supply and Service Agreement

N AR #LRYE

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in page 29 in accordance with Main Board Listing
Rule 14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing connected transactions
and the unqualified letter from the auditor and have confirmed that the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been entered into by
the Group in the ordinary course of its business, on normal commercial
terms, and in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Amounts Annual caps
T8 FELR
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FET
980,479 1,502,000
160,931 280,000
999,000

1,618,568 3,000,000
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee having regard to the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility
and the time devoted to the business of the Group.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to

Directors and eligible employees. Details of the Scheme are set out in note 36
to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association although there are no restrictions against such rights under
company laws in the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2012.

AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company will be proposed for approval by shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheung Kwok Wa
CHAIRMAN

8 March 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
(BREIAWRE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) recognises the
importance of corporate governance practice of a listed company. It is in
the interest of the stakeholders and shareholders for a listed company to
operate in a transparent manner with the adoptions of various self-regulatory
policies, procedures and monitoring mechanisms and a clear definition of
accountability of directors and management.

The Stock Exchange has made various amendments to the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Former Code”) set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules, and the revised code, namely the “Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report” (the “Code”), became effective
on 1 April 2012. In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has been in
compliance with relevant provisions of the Former Code from 1 January 2012
to 31 March 2012 and the Code from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012,
save for the deviation that the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors are not appointed for specific terms pursuant to
paragraph A.4.1 of the Former Code and the Code (as the case may be).
Notwithstanding the aforesaid deviation, all the Directors (including the non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general
meeting in compliance with the Company’s Articles of Association. As such,
the Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting
than those in the Former Code and the Code (as the case may be).

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
Following a specific enquiry, each Directors has confirmed that he or she has
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code and the
code of conduct regarding director’s securities transactions adopted by the
Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.
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DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group
and is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the management
of the business and the affairs of the Group. The Group has adopted
internal guidelines which set forth matters that require the Board’s
approval. Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board approves
the Group’s strategic plan, annual budget, key operational initiatives,
major investments and funding decisions. It also reviews the Group’s
financial performance, identifies principal risks of the Group’s business
and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to manage these
risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions of the
Group are delegated to the management.

The Board meets regularly and as warranted by particular
circumstances. Notices and agendas are prepared by the Company
Secretary as delegated by the Chairman of the Board and distributed
to the Board members within reasonable time before the meetings.
Relevant meeting papers are also sent to directors well before the
meetings, informing them of the background and giving explanation
on matters to be brought before the Board. All directors are given the
opportunity to include matters in the agendas for Board meetings. To
ensure the directors make decisions objectively and in the interests of
the Company, the Company’s articles of association provide that any
director shall abstain from voting on any resolutions in which he/she
or his/her associates is/are materially interested nor be counted in
the quorum of the meeting. Draft and final versions of the minutes
of Board meetings are sent to all directors for their comment and
records respectively within a reasonable time after the board meeting
and are kept by the Company Secretary.
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D I R ECTO RS (continued) A-

The Board (continued)
During the year under review, the Board had held 4 meetings and
the directors’ attendance at Board meetings and Board committees’
meetings were as follows:

EE )

BEzgwm)

REBEFER BESRTTHARE
B OEENEELYRRESEEEY
S MRS

18 18

Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
g ENEES REZES FMzEE
a3 =E = =t
Number of Meeting e E 4 3 1 1
Executive directors HiTEE
Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman) REE(LE) 4 - - -
Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director) Bl (Z E484518) 4 - - -
Cheung Kwok Ping R B 4 - - -
Lam Ka Po MRE 4 - - -
Cheung Ka Ho FRR 4 - - -
Liu Min 218 4 - - -
Zhou Pei Feng AiElE 4 - - -
Chan Sau Chi (resigned on 1 October 2012) A Z (N -F——%+F—HEHE) 2 - - -
Non-executive director HHTEE
Lo Ka Leong BR= 4 3 1 1
Independent non-executive directors BUHRTEE
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRAAK 4 3 1 1
Leung Tai Chiu 28 4 3 1 1
Mok Yiu Keung, Peter B 4 3 1 1
Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen - 9510 4 3 1 1

The directors have observed the importance of directing and
supervising the Company’s affair at a more regular interval. After
consulting all directors, Board meetings have been preliminarily
scheduled to be held at quarterly interval and no less than 4 times in
the coming year.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in D.3.1
of the Code.

During the year under review, the Board met once to review the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DIR ECTO RS (continued)

Division and responsibilities

The Board is headed by the Chairman whose role differs from that of
the Managing Director of the Company. The roles of the Chairman
and Managing Director are segregated and are not exercised by the

same individual.

The duties of the Chairman include (but not limited to) the following:

schedule meetings that enable the Board to perform its duties
and responsibilities and to ensure all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner without
interfering the Company’s operations;

prepare meeting agenda after consultation with the Managing
Director;

exercise control over quality, quantity and timeliness of the
flow of information between management and the Board and
to ensure decisions are made on a fully informed basis by the
directors; and

assist in ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules and the
Company’s guidelines on corporate governance.

The Managing Director is mainly responsible for the overall strategic
planning and day-to-day management of the Group.
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A- DIRECTORS (continued)

Division and responsibilities (continued)

The Board currently comprises 12 members, four of whom are
independent non-executive directors who are expressly identified in all
corporate communications that disclose the names of directors of the
Company. At least one of the independent non-executive directors
possesses appropriate professional qualifications (or accounting or
related financial management expertise) as required by the Listing
Rules. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive directors

Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman)

Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director)
Cheung Kwok Ping

Lam Ka Po

Cheung Ka Ho

Liu Min

Zhou Pei Feng

Chan Sau Chi (resigned on 1 October 2012)

Non-executive director
Lo Ka Leong

Independent non-executive directors
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Leung Tai Chiu

Mok Yiu Keung, Peter

Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung and Mr. Cheung
Kwok Ping are brothers and are uncles of Mr. Cheung Ka Ho.

The non-executive director and each of the independent non-
executive directors (except Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen, who was
appointed by the Board as an independent non-executive director
on 4 May 2011) was appointed for an initial term of two years
commencing in November 2006. The appointment of Mr. Lo Ka
Leong as a non-executive director will continue after the initial term
unless terminated by three months’ notice in writing served by either
party to the other. The appointment of the independent non-executive
directors will continue after the initial term unless otherwise agreed
between the parties. Currently, the non-executive director and the
independent non-executive directors were not appointed for specific
terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for
re-election. The Board considers that although such arrangement
deviates from paragraph A.4.1 of the Code, sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than those in the Code.
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DIR ECTO RS (continued)

Division and responsibilities (continued)

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence as
required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board comprises directors who collectively provide core
competencies, sales and marketing experience and technical
knowledge in laminates and its upstream materials, administration
and management experience in the PRC factories, financial
and accounting skill, as well as in-house advice to comply with
international laws and regulations. The current Board size of twelve
directors with a balance of skills and experience is appropriate for
effective decision making, taking into account the nature and scope
of the operations of the Company.

Appointment, re-election and removal

The Company’s articles of association set out a formal, considered
and transparent procedure for the appointment of new directors to
the Board. Any director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual
vacancy or as addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-
appointment at the next following general meeting after appointment.
At every annual general meeting, one-third of the directors, including
the Chairman, shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election by shareholders. The directors appointed by the Board who
are subject to retirement and re-election as mentioned above shall
be taken into account in calculating the total number of directors for
the time being but shall not be taken into account in calculating the
number of directors who are to retire by rotation. All directors eligible
for re-election shall have their biographical details made available
to the shareholders to enable them to make an informed decision
on their re-election. Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-
designation of director shall be timely disclosed to the shareholders by
announcement and shall include in such announcement, the reasons
given by the director for his resignation.
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DIR ECTORS (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors

The Company and the Board require each director to keep abreast of
his responsibilities as a director of the Company and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company. Every director
is required to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of
the Board and the material matters of the Company and to serve
the Board with such degree of care and due diligence given his own
expertise, qualification and professionalism.

Every newly appointed director shall receive a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment. All
directors shall be updated and briefed on continuing professional
development as is necessary to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the operations and the business of the Company
and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities under the
applicable laws and regulations. The Board has a procedure for
directors, either individually or as a group, in the furtherance of their
duties, to take independent professional advice, if necessary, at
the Company’s expenses to enable and facilitate the directors to
make well considered decisions. Appropriate insurance coverage for
directors’ and officers’ liability has been arranged against possibility of
legal action to be taken against the directors and the management.

Pursuant to A.6.5 of the Code, directors should participate in
appropriate continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.

A briefing session was organised for the Directors for the year under
review to update the Directors on the new amendments to the Code
and associated Listing Rules.
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DIR ECTO RS (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors (continued)
During the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012, the

A. EE,

BEESETEWm)

RZE——FNOA—RE=_Z—=

Directors also participated in the following trainings:

ToRA=1T—HILHHE - EFTF2HEIN
=l

Attending or
participating

in the briefing
session/seminars/
programmes
relevant to

the business/
directors’ duties

HERSH
BERAEY EERHK

wENE
Name of Directors EEHE EEske iHE
Executive Directors BITES
Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman) REE(LE) v
Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director) RERoR (ZE FAATHE) V
Cheung Kwok Ping SREDF Vv
Lam Ka Po MRE Vv
Cheung Ka Ho RE R v
Liu Min 288 Vv
Zhou Pei Feng AL g vV
Non-executive Director: FHITES :
Lo Ka Leong BR= Vv
Independent non-executive Directors: BIYFHTES:
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BRI vV
Leung Tai Chiu RESHR \
Mok Yiu Keung, Peter Eigss Vv
Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen e Vv

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with A.6.5 of the
Code effective on 1 April 2012 on Directors’ training.

Supply of and access to information

The management of the Company has an obligation to furnish the
Board with complete, adequate and appropriate information in
such form and such quality in a timely manner so as to enable them
to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as directors of the Company. All the directors are
given separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management.

All the directors are given separate and independent access to
the Company Secretary, whose role includes ensuring that Board
procedures are observed and followed, and that applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The Company Secretary attends all the
meetings of the Board and Board committees and is responsible for
drafting minutes and keeping minutes records which can be accessed
by any director for inspection.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The level and make-up of remuneration and

disclosure

The Board has set up a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) which comprises four independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen (Chairman), Mr.
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr. Leung Tai Chiu and Mr. Mok Yiu
Keung, Peter, to formulate policies and procedures for determining
the remuneration of directors and senior management and other
remuneration related matters. The Remuneration Committee is set
up with written terms of reference which set out clearly its duties and
authorities delegated by the Board, including the following duties:

° formulate the framework or Board policy for determining
the remuneration of the Company’s Board and senior
management. The objective of such policy should ensure
that members of the senior management of the Company are
provided with appropriate incentives to encourage enhanced
performance and are, in a fair and reasonable manner,
rewarded for their individual contributions to the success of
the Company;

o recommend to the Board specific remuneration packages
including, where appropriate, allowances, bonuses, benefits
in kind, incentive payments, and share options, if any, for
each executive director and the Managing Director and such
other members of senior management as it is designated to
consider;

o recommend targets for any performance-linked pay schemes
operated by the Company, taking into account remuneration
and employment conditions within the industry and in
comparable companies; and

° recommend to the Board the remuneration of non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors)
taking into account factors such as effort, time spent and
responsibilities.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (ontinued)

The level and make-up of remuneration and
disclosure (continued)

When recommending the remuneration package for each individual
director, the Remuneration Committee will consider his qualification
and experience, specific duties and responsibilities assigned to him
by the Board and the prevailing market packages available for similar
position. The emoluments of the directors on a named basis for the
year under review is set out on pages 113 to 115 in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements. Review and comparison in terms
of directors’ emoluments package and net profits of the Group are
made from time to time with comparable listed industrial companies
with similar capitalisation to the Group. Considering all such factors,
the Remuneration Committee would make recommendation on the
remuneration package for each director after consultation with the
Chairman.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee had
convened one meeting to consider the remuneration packages for all
directors and senior management.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
Company’s account which gives a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company. The Company deploys appropriate and
sufficient resources to prepare unaudited half-yearly account and
audited yearly account. Senior management is required to present
and explain the financial reporting and matters that materially affect or
may have material impact on the financial performance and operations
of the Company to the Audit Committee and the Board and respond
to the queries and concerns raised by the Audit Committee and
the Board to their satisfaction. The statement of the auditor of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements is set out in Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 48 to 49 of this annual report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (ontinued)

Internal controls
The Group has in place a system of internal controls, the key elements
of which are as follows:

o formal policies and procedures are in place, including the
documentation of key processes, procedures and rules
relating to the delegation of authorities. These allow the
monitoring of controls and restrict the unauthorised use of the
Group’s assets;

o experienced and suitably qualified staff take responsibility for
important business functions. Annual appraisal procedures
have been established to maintain standards of performance;

° monthly business and financial reports are prepared, providing
relevant, timely, reliable and up-to-date financial and other
information; budget variances are investigated as appropriate;
and

° an internal audit function, which reports directly to the Audit
Committee, is in place to determine whether the above
procedures are properly carried out.

The Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness of the above
internal control system of the Group including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management and will conduct
such review at least once a year, so as to ensure the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets are properly safeguarded.
The Board is satisfied that, based on the information supplied,
coupled with its own observations and with the assistance of the
Audit Committee, the present internal controls and risk management
processes are satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s
operations and business.

In addition to the internal control system, the Board has established
an internal audit team that reports directly to the Audit Committee.
The internal audit team will independently audit various functions,
operations and systems existed in the Company according to their
weight of significance to the Company as well as the priority list
recommended by the Audit Committee. The internal audit team will
prepare an internal audit report highlighting the deficiencies and
weaknesses in existing audit functions, operations and systems for
discussion by the Audit Committee and the Board, and based on
these findings the Board will instruct senior management to take
appropriate corrective and improvement actions.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (ontinueq)

Audit Committee

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated to them by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities

of the Audit Committee include the followings:

review with the external auditor, the audit plan;

review with the external auditor, their evaluation of the system
of internal accounting controls;

review the scope and results of the internal audit procedures;

review the statement of financial position and income
statement of the Company and the consolidated statement
of financial position and income statement of the Group and
submit them to the Board;

nominate persons as auditor;

review with the internal and external auditors their findings on
their evaluation of the Company’s system of internal controls
for the purpose of assisting the Board in developing policies
that would enhance the controls and operating systems of the
Company; and

review connected transactions and examine the adequacy
of internal controls of the Group as part of the standard
procedures.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (ontinued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the scope and
results of the audit and its cost effectiveness and the independence
and objectivity of the Company’s auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
The Audit Committee will review the independence of the Company’s
auditor, the resources and adequacy of the internal audit function, at
least once a year. Where the auditor also supplies non-audit services
to the Company, the Audit Committee will keep the nature and extent
of such services under review, seeking to balance between the
maintenance of objectivity and value for money. During the year under
review, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditor to
the Group were as follows:
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Amount (HK$)
SHEGERT)
Nature of services PRIEME
Audit services ZER 3,000,000
Non-audit services FERZ R
() Tax services () T I5 AR TS 215,000
(i) Other services (i) EL A R 75 320,000

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the non-
audit services provided by the Company’s auditor and concluded
that in their opinion such services did not affect the independence
of the auditor. The Board has appointed an accountant to be
responsible for the accounting and financial matters of the Group
and the Audit Committee has free access to the accountant and
senior management of the Group and to any financial and relevant
information which enable them to discharge their audit committee
function effectively and efficiently. Besides internal assistance being
available, the Audit Committee may request for assistance and
advice from external auditors as and when they think necessary at
the expenses of the Company. The Audit Committee shall meet with
external auditor without the presence of executive directors to discuss
the Group’s financial reporting and any major and financial matters
arising during the year under review at least once a year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (ontinueq)

Audit Committee (continued)
In addition, the Audit Committee is authorised:

o to investigate any matter within its written terms of reference;
o to have full access to and co-operation by the management;
. to have full discretion to invite any director or executive officer

to attend its meetings; and

o to have reasonable resources to enable it to discharge its
functions properly.

The Board will ensure that the members of the Audit Committee
are appropriately qualified to discharge their responsibilities and at
least one member has accounting and related financial management
expertise or experience. The Audit Committee comprises four
independent non-executive directors and one non-executive director,
namely Mr. Leung Tai Chiu (Chairman), Mr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael, Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter, Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen and
Mr. Lo Ka Leong.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters,
including a review of the unaudited interim financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2012 and the audited
annual financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012. During the year under review, the Audit Committee
had convened three meetings.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the
following works:

o review of the scope of audit work;

° review and discussion of the annual financial results and
report in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 and
interim financial results and report for the six months ended
30 June 2012 and discussion with the management of the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group;

. discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of the
external auditors; and

. review of the internal control, financial reporting and risk
management systems of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1P & /aHE

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management function

The Company'’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision. Executive directors
normally meet on an informal basis every two weeks and participate
in senior management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast of
the latest operations and performance of the Group and to monitor
and ensure the management carry out the directions and strategies
set by the Board correctly and appropriately. Clear instructions are
given to the management as to the matters which should bring to the
attention and be determined by the Board on behalf of the Company.

Board committees

The Board has set up three Board committees, namely Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee,
each chaired by different independent non-executive director, to assist
the Board in discharging functions specific to each committee. Each
Board committee has its own written terms of reference setting out
the principles, procedures and arrangements which are substantially
the same as those for the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises four members who are
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael (Chairman), Mr. Leung Tai Chiu, Mr. Mok Yiu Keung, Peter,
and Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen. According to the written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee, the major responsibilities of
the Nomination Committee include:

° regularly review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board with regard
to any adjustments that are deemed necessary;

° review whether or not an independent non-executive director
is independent for the purpose of the Listing Rules on annual
basis;

° be responsible for identifying and nominating for the approval

of the Board, candidates to fill board vacancies as and when
they arise; and

° be responsible for re-nomination having regard to the
director’s contribution and performance, including, if
applicable, as an independent director.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (continued)

During the year under review and up to the date of the report, the
Nomination Committee had convened one meeting during which,
among other things, considered the directors who should retire by
rotation pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association and Code.
The Nomination Committee had resolved that Mr. Cheung Kwok
Keung, Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping, Mr. Lo Ka Leong, and Mr. Mok
Yiu Keung, Peter, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. All the above-
named directors were nominated by the Nomination Committee to
stand for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. During the meetings of the Nomination Committee, it
had also reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
to ensure that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders. All directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with shareholders. In
annual general meeting, Chairman of the Board and the chairman
of each committee are required to attend and answer questions
from shareholders in respect of the matters that they are responsible
and accountable for. The external auditor is also required to be
present to assist the directors in addressing any relevant queries by
shareholders. The Company has also set up a public relations website
which enables the shareholders and public to post their questions,
comments and opinions in relation to the Group to the Board.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”) provide good opportunities for
shareholders to air their views and ask directors and management
questions regarding the Company. All shareholders of the
Company receive the annual report, circulars and notices
of AGM and EGM and other corporate communications in
a form chosen by each shareholder of the Company. The
notices are also published on the Company’s website at
www.kblaminates.com. Separate resolutions are required at general
meetings on each distinct issue. A shareholder is permitted to appoint
any number of proxies to attend and vote in his stead.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant to the Company’s
Articles of Association, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings may request the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting by sending a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary. The objects of the meeting must be
stated in the written requisition.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board. Contact details are as
follows:

Address: 2nd Floor, Harbour View 1
No. 12 Science Park East Avenue
Phase 2 Hong Kong Science Park
Shatin, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 26910445/26915245
Email: enquiry@Kingboard.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association.

An up to date version of the Articles of Association is available on
the Company’s website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited’s website. Shareholders may refer to the Company’s Articles
of Association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.kblaminates.com)
immediately after the relevant general meetings.

R EREF

BT IRERRERLAEN - RRAE L
ERZEAFH(BEERENESR)R
2WORER  HRRZERERE - It
Sh - RIBARRIABERADN - HEL
PRI D2 —ARBMERRAGRE
SR AR P 2K AR R AR
BERBRAE  ERAEETGHAA
WEZHHEMENR - AMFHANB AL
AHNEEERA -

ERAIAAR G FHEMEALERN
HMARRESSERTMENR BT
(=3 UNNE

sk - B
> H
HARERSE ZH
R RE R+ 5%
HERNE— B
{EE : (852) 26910445/26915245
B : enquiry@Kingboard.com

RRLRE  BRABZARENER
2R BARBAREACRBERTE)
M IEATF RN R B E biltigit - Wik
HRENEE - BEFBERS D - UE
AAREE - BFREF AT ERBERR
TET T LABEEE

R - A A M AR
AR MRS -

ABERAANRIRATTEARR R
U R FTAEER o R 2E M
BERANARSEAEENNFS -

BB ETARA] FTEEREAGRER
REBERGEARBREREFARR
BRERAGEREEBEERERS
BRBREEHAEXZMERARE
ik (www.hkexnews.hk) X 78 2 &) 43 ik
(www.Kblaminates.com) & & o

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 =& — =443 47



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B HEN RS

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 155, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Y& 37 /% 8Bl 3R &5

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2012 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

8 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

NG

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BiE =T ——F+-_A=+—HILtFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income, gains and losses

Distribution costs

Administrative costs

Share-based payments

Share of result of an associate

Gain on deemed disposal of an associate

Gain (loss) on disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity
investments

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic
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50  KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED 2B ERIZEAR B R A A

2012
—E-—F
Notes HK$’000
FosE FHET
7 12,483,227
(10,564,936)
1,918,291
9 127,034
(276,179)
(419,619)
36 (30,847)
25 2,248
37 30,377
64,438
21 23,728
10 -
11 (94,025)
1,345,446
12 (179,505)
13 1,165,941
1,163,941
2,000
1,165,941
16

HK$0.3887% 7T

2011

HK$'000
FHET

13,204,979
(10,944,725)

2,260,254
134,119
(275,727)
(414,058)
(69,052)
(4,668

(503)

(1,919)
(93,958)

1,634,488
(176,650)

1,357,838

1,324,958

32,880

1,357,838

HK$0.4427%8 7T



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EEW S

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BiE =T ——F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2012
—E-—F
HK$’000
FET

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Gain on cash flow hedging instruments

Fair value gain (loss) on available-for-sale
investments

Release upon disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

Exchange differences arising on translation to
presentation currency

Share of other comprehensive income
(loss) of an associate

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

A RDH

Hit2EE
R mh TAKS
AHEEREZ AFE
Yk (B51R)
H &R H SR AR
BE
A SR A RERR

AfrE=2HmEMm
EEZERER

FE1E— M E AR Bl
R (E1R)

AEFEEMEE S

AEEEHKEARE

EEREARERGNE

EAY/NSIESESPN
JEIER R

1,165,941

227,389

(64,438)

7,237

429

170,617

1,336,558

1,332,332
4,226

1,336,558

2011

HK$'000
FHET

1,357,838

9,838
(123,390)
503
1,919
470,659
6)
359,523

1,717,361

1,645,944
71,417

1,717,361
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

wra MR

At 31 December 2012 R =B ——4%+-A=+—H

Notes
b

Non-current assets ERBEE

Investment properties wEYE 17

Properties, plant and equipment 7 E YN 18

Prepaid lease payments FEHEERE 19

Available-for-sale investments AL ERE 20

Held-to-maturity investments BEZIHEE 21

Non-current deposits ERBIET 2 22

Other non-current assets Hib3Emen&E 23

Deferred tax assets RIETIBE E 24

Interest in an associate R—REEE R E 2 Em 25

Goodwill [EES 26
Current assets MEVEE

Inventories =FE 27

Trade and other receivables and B 5 K H M R ER R

prepayments TEfRF A 28

Bills receivables FEWERE 28

Properties held for development FREME 29

Other current assets HibmehEE 23

Prepaid lease payments FEHEERE 19

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries B EN I =YNSIE /S 30

Taxation recoverable BEE

Bank balances and cash RITEBRRIES 31
Current liabilities mENEE

Trade and other payables 5 R EAMREMIRR 32

Bills payables R 32

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FER R R B A RRIE 30

Taxation payable JEETIIE

Bank borrowings — amount due within RITIEE — —FREH

one year ZFRIE 33

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

mEBEEFE

BERERRBAER

52 KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED EEE ERIZEARB R A A

2012
—E—CF
HK$’000
TR

913,829
5,492,448
499,267
1,063,506

79,867

4,111

238

8,053,266

1,259,151

4,638,708
1,250,298
575,374
712,531
11,841
437,397
7,063
2,328,204

11,220,567

1,488,561
109,518
32,447
302,000

1,310,796

3,243,322

7,977,245

16,030,511

2011

HK$'000
FHET

87,650
5,212,256
396,987
1,060,507
271,434
162,139
712,707
6,565
82,314
238

7,992,797

1,390,738

3,838,121
1,692,009
248,486
7,758
381,817
7,063
2,602,674

10,068,666

1,696,272
207,168
31,061
288,511

665,261

2,788,273

7,280,393

15,273,190



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 454 BA#S A 3=

At 31 December 2012 W —ZE——F+-A=+—H

2012 2011
—EB——F —E——5F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
b FHER FAT

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAR 24 98,144 3,366

Bank borrowings — amount due after IRITIEE ——F &35

one year 218 33 3,041,681 3,479,172
3,139,825 3,482,538
12,890,686 11,790,652

Capital and reserves A& A 2 G
Share capital [N 34 300,000 300,000
Reserves i 11,508,165 10,444,986
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KA R85 A JE(G#EZE 11,808,165 10,744,986
Non-controlling interests FEFERR RS 1,082,521 1,045,666
Total equity N CE 12,890,686 11,790,652

The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 155 were approved BTN T =F=-ANAEHAERRET
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 March 2013 and are BHESOBRFI5AZIEAMGHRE  WHT

signed on its behalf by: TEEREKEE
Cheung Kwok Wa Cheung Kwok Keung
REE RENE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
Ea Ea
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CONSOLDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZE =T ——F+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAAHEARL
Property  Investment Share Non-
Share Share Translation revaluation revaluation  Hedging options Special  Statutory Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
NEERE  REEM BER
BE  ROER EXER i BE  HOEE  RERE  RHEE  AEER  RNER  REE &t FEREE  HALE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HKS000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000
TAL TR TEL TAL TR TR TAL THEL i TEL TAL TR TEL TAL
(note 35) (note &) (note b)
(W) (Wita) (M)

Balance at 1 January 2011 RZE-——5-A-BziH 300000 1,007,104 1,083,259 7,268 5,024 (9,838) - 757,689 31,782 1633 6595919 9,869,990 983,397 10,853,387

Profit for the year RERRF - - - - - - - - - - 1324958 1324958 32880 1,357,838

Gain on cash flow hedging instruments 34 % & ¥ T &l - - - - - 9,838 - - - - - 9838 - 9,838

Exchange differences arising on RAEZRHEEM

translation to presentation curency B4 ZERER - - 4R - - - - - - - - 412 38537 470659

Fair value loss on avalable-for-sale EERE 7 ATERR

investments - - - - (123390) - - - - - - (123390 - (1233%0)
Share of other comprehensive loss of  JElE—EIBERRZ K2 E
an associate 5] - - ®) - - - - - - - - 6) - )
Release upon disposal of HEA R ERERER
avallable-for-sale investments - - - - 503 - - - - - - 503 - 508
Impaiment loss on avallable-for-sale T4 ERAFERE
investments - - - - 1919 - - - - - - 1,919 - 1919
Total comprehensive income for the year 4§ 2 AINEEE - - 432,116 - (120,968 9,838 - - - - 1324958 1645944 47 1,717,361
Recognition of equty-settled BRURAF AR
share-based payments - - - - - - 69,062 - - - - 69,052 - 69,062
Divicend paid to non-controling interests 3 fi F3E2H & - - - - - - - - - - - - (9,148) (9,148)
Final dvidend paid for the yearended ~ EFEZE=2-245+2F
31 December 2010 ZH-HLEERERE - - - - - - - - - - (5400000  (540,000) - (540,000)
Interim dividend paid for the year ended EFEE-F——%+-A
31 December 2011 Z+-ALEETERE - - - - - - - - - - (30,0000  (300,000) - (300,000)
Transfer to reserve HATHE - - - - - - - - 12,604 - (12,604) - - -
- - - - - - 69,052 - 12,604 - (852604) (770,948 (9,148 (780,096)
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZE-——%+24
=t-AzER 300000 1,097,104  1,515375 7268 (115,744) - 69,062 757,689 44,33 1633 7068273 10744986 1,045,666 11,790,652

Balance at 1 January 2012 ——F-A-Az&H 300000 1,097,104 1,615375 7268 (115,744) - 69,062 757,689 44,336 1633 7068273 10744986 1,045,666 11,790,652

Profit for the year REEHEF - - - - - - - - - - 1163941 1,163941 2000 1,165,941

Exchange differences arising on RREZ2RERM

tranglation to presentation curency B4 ZEREE - - 5011 - - - - - - - - 5011 2,226 7281

Fair value gain on avallable-for-sle ~ FHEHEREZATE

investments g - - - - 227,389 - - - - - - 227,389 - 227,389
Share of other comprehenive income of B/ —EIE AT
an associate Hh2ERE - - 429 - - - - - - - - 429 - 499
Release Upon disposal of HEA R ETER
avallable-for-sale investments @ - - - - (64,438) - - - - - - (64,438) - (64,438
Total comprehensive income for the year K4 2 Tl B8 - - 5,440 - 162951 - - - - - 1163941 1332332 4206 1336558
Recognition of equity-settled BAURGT AR
share-based payments - - - - - - 30,847 - - - - 30,847 - 30,847
Acquisition of interest ina subsidiary W —EHBARER
(note 37) (Mf3237) - - - - - - - - - - - - 58,569 58,559
Dividend paid to non-controling interests {4 F3FERER 2R E - - - - - - - - - - - - 590 (2590
Final dvidend paid for the yearended ~ EFfEZ-5—%+_f
31 December 2011 Z+-ALEERERE - - - - - - - - - - (150,000  (150,000) - (150,000)
Interim ividend paid for the year ended EFEE-F-—%+-A
31 December 2012 SH-ALEETHRE - - - - - - - - - - (150,0000  (150,000) - (150,000)
Transfer to reserve HATHE - - - - - - - - 2,647 - (2647) - - -
- - - - - - 30,847 - 2,647 - (302647) (269,153 32629 (236,524)
Balance at 31 December 2012 RZE-—Z#12A=1-8
Z‘%ﬁ? 300000 1,097,104 1520815 7,268 47,207 - 99,899 757,689 46,983 1633 7929567 11,808,165  1,082521 12,890,686

Notes: PEE

(@) Statutory reserve comprises statutory fund, which is non-distributable, represents @ A ’ﬁfﬁZEﬁ%{%@%;ii’ﬁ@ BEHRD
capitalisation of retained profits of certain subsidiaries established in People’s EAE/\@L TJ;E{JWE TH’M% - ikl !
Republic of China (“PRC”) for capital re-investment in these subsidiaries and funds }J;i;?fg;g& (i ng‘?j;g}gMTﬁﬁ RUEECES
shall be used to (i) make up prior year losses or (i) expand production operations.

(o) The other reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid for (b) HAp SN — T — S E I B A T 5 MESS
acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries during 2010 and the adjustment to IR BERIEE RS AR 2 MR ZESE -
the non-controlling interest.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FEHEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—F——F+_-A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—EB——F —ZE——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KK
Profit before taxation BR7% A& A 1,345,446 1,534,488
Adjustments for: FLLATIEEfEH AR -
Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment — #% - R MEREZITE 709,045 780,285
Release of prepaid lease payments TE R E AR D 12,612 8,375
Interest expenses e 94,025 93,958
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade B 5 R EMEUARTR
and other receivables R ZAEEE 11,566 5,882
Loss (gain) on disposal and write off of HE RMEEmE - BE R
properties, plant and equipment 2 e (M) 47,924 (3,632)
Gain on fair value changes of investment KEMENFEEZE
properties & (1,840) (9,300)
(Gain) loss on disposal of available-for-sale HETHEEREZ
investments (Y5 ) 518 (64,438) 503
Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity investments B EFA EHHIRE Z I (23,728) -
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate RIEHE — M E QR 2 W (30,377) -
Interest income FEUTA (78,282) (48,518)
Dividends from available-for-sale investment At HERE ZIRE (28,480) (19,374)
Share-based payments LARRD S50 30,847 69,052
Share of result of an associate JEE—MEE AR 2 A (2,248) 4,668
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHHEREZ
investments VERIEY SEi= 1,919
Operating cash flows before movements RETBEESEER 288
in working capital Rense 2,022,072 2,418,306
Decrease in inventories FERAD 136,994 291,619
Increase in trade and other receivables and B 5 R B PR YRR R TR
prepayments FRIEIE N (826,201) (62,119)
Decrease (increase) in bill receivables MR R A (38 n) 342,012 (465,932)
(Increase) decrease in amounts due FEUR B 2 & R RIE
from fellow subsidiaries (38 hn)5E > (55,580) 74,442
(Increase) decrease in properties held FEREYEGE )R
for development (325,694) 8,748
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables B 5 & B e BERR G4 ) 1E N (283,891) 417,325
Decrease in bills payables FEREER D (97,650) (199,388)
Net increase in derivative financial instruments TSR T BN FsE - (33,493)
Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FERT R M B A Bl R IE I AN 1,386 3,049
Cash generated from operations WEEKERE 913,448 2,452 557
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHEBNIED (496) (322)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BHPEPEMER (167,885) (239,442)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Q& ¥KFBREFE 745,067 2,212,793
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &8 e R ExR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

2012

—E—CF

Notes HK$’000
ihEs FHET

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of available-for-sale investments

Purchase of investment properties

Purchase of properties, plant and equipment

Net cash outflow on acquisition of
subsidiaries

Deposits paid for acquisition of properties,
plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments made

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Proceeds from disposal of held-to-maturity
investments

Interest received

Dividend income received

Proceed from disposal of properties,
plant and equipment

Purchase of held-to-maturity investments

Consideration paid for acquisition of
additional interest in an associate

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings

Dividends paid on ordinary shares
Interest and other finance changes paid
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTING
BANK BALANCES AND CASH

REXK
BEAHLERE
BEREME
BEDE - BEL&E
WS B AREEZ
REMHFE
W= - BE &
BB ZA &
EffENEENER
HERHEERE
PRS5IR
HEREEIMRE
Fr{S50R
A E
B ERA
HEWE - BB K&E
Pr{S50R
BESEEIHKRE
Ui — g & R RES M AR
Pt 2 (KB

REXBARE
T

BMEERE

FIGIRITREE
BEERITEE

B EBARBE
ENAEREMRERM
B IR a2 BB

MEEBDAARS
FHE

RERRELEEEE
(R) B s

FHOZRERRE
ZEEE

Exgmnyd

FRZRERRE
ZEEE - BRAT
EHRRAE
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(2,085,305)
(686,240)
(367,569)

37 (205,439)

(79,867)
(7,021)

2,309,695

296,213
89,754
39,918

22,792

(673,069)

2,473,375
(2,398,788)
(300,000)
(99,141)
(25,930)

(350,484)

(278,486)

2,602,674

4,016

2,328,204

2011

HK$'000
FHET

(720,088)

(428,630)

(162,139)

151,878

36,010
7,936

123,632
(192,486)

(50,988)
(1,234,875)

2,681,916
(2,147,486)
(840,000)
(100,052)
(9,148)

(414,770)

563,148
1,982,571

56,955

2,602,674



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

RE IR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BEZ =T ——F+=-A=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate parent company
is Jamplan (BVI) Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands and its ultimate holding company is
Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited (“KCHL”), a company which
is an exempted company with limited liability incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with its shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the section headed
“Corporate Information” on page 2 to 3.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 45.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying
assets; and

Financial instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of financial assets

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of

underlying assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments to HKAS
12 “Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets” in the current year.
Under the amendments, investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment
property” are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale for the
purposes of measuring deferred taxes, unless the presumption is
rebutted in certain circumstances.

—REH

AARERERSFMAL T B A—
REHRBZARAR  ERHOREHS
AR SHAERAA([BRA]) ER
£ e ARRZEB AR AJamplan
BVI) Ltd. * ZABA—RREBE L
SAMERY 2 BRAR C MARRZ &
IR AR ARBELEISEE([&EL
T #RalA—RXRHASESEMK
SR BRAR] - ERMHRER
FTERLET - AARGMPHERELEE
BB 2 IR E2E3E[ A RIE R
—EIREE o

AATARERBAT  HXSHEA
A2 E B EBELIMFEAE o

AEBRAFEERAUTHE LS
R (BB EFEAE ) BEMAFIER
RIERTBBEM R RER -

BB LR BEENIE - Y EI4ER

BB AER
EEEHHRE  SRTA: KE-8
EAETHY  REBEE

2T
BTRES - AEE A BB

R Z BT HAEBEARFEFBEFE
B BRI MM BARRA R, HR AR
BUBRERAHNORELEEATE -

BREERF12R BRI EL
BIE - WEEEEE
AEBRAFREEREBEBEER
F125R BT RIERIA - WEEE
EIZERT - HUERT T @ slatERLE
BEME @ BRERBEEGERFA0
BIREME LA FERAAEZRE
WERAEHER2HEE - BRIFEST
BRTRERKE RS ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

2.

58

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (coninueq)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of

underlying assets (continued)

The Group measures its investment properties using the fair value
model. As a result of the application of the amendments to HKAS
12, the directors of the Company (“Directors”) reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the investment
properties located in Hong Kong and United Kingdom of carrying
amount of approximately HK$27,520,000 and HK$686,340,000
at 31 December 2012 respectively (2011: located in Hong Kong
of approximately HK$25,780,000) and determined that the “Sale”
presumption is not rebutted through sales for the purpose of
measuring deferred tax liabilities in respect of such properties.

In addition, the Group has rebutted the “Sale” presumption relating
the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC of carrying
amount of approximately HK$199,969,000 at 31 December 2012
(2011: HK$61,870,000) as such properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.

The application of the amendments to HKAS 12 has resulted in the
Group not recognising any deferred taxes on changes in fair value
of the investment properties in Hong Kong and United Kingdom as
the Group is not subject to any income taxes on disposal of these
investment properties, assuming that the Group is considered as a
non-resident in United Kingdom. For investment properties located
in the PRC, there is no impact on the deferred tax liabilities provided
for the fair value changes of these properties. Previously, the Group
recognised deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment
properties on the basis that the entire carrying amounts of the
properties were recovered through use.

The amendments to HKAS 12 have been applied retrospectively.
However, in view of the insignificant increase in fair value changes in
the Group’s investment properties located in Hong Kong and United
Kingdom as of 31 December 2011 and during the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2012, no restated financial statements and
financial effects of the Group’s financial performance and position are
presented for current or prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

ECE-——F+-A=Z+—RHILFE

STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (coninueq)

New and revised HKFRS, issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
cycle!

Disclosures - Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities’

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and

transition disclosures®

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 Consolidated financial statements, joint

and HKFRS 12

arrangements and disclosure of interests in
other entities: Transition guidance'

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment entities?

and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC)* - INT 20

Financial instruments?

Consolidated financial statements'
Joint arrangements'

Disclosure of interests in other entities’
Fair value measurement’

Employee benefits'

Separate financial statements'

Investments in associates and joint ventures'

Presentation of items of other comprehensive
income?

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities?

Stripping costs in the production phase of a
surface mine'
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

2.

60

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (coninueq)

New and revised HKFRS, issued but not yet effective

(continued)

* IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting Interpretation
Committee.

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 cycle
issued in June 2012

The “Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 cycle” include
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
Amendments to HKFRSs include the amendments to HKAS 16
“Property, plant and equipment” and the amendments to HKAS 32
“Financial instruments: Presentation”.

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-by
equipment and servicing equipment should be classified as properties,
plant and equipment when they meet the definition of properties, plant
and equipment in HKAS 16 and as inventory otherwise. The Directors
do not anticipate that the application of the amendments will have a
material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax on distributions
to holders of an equity instrument and transaction costs of an equity
transaction should be accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12
“Income taxes”. The Directors anticipate that the amendments to
HKAS 32 will have no effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Group has already adopted this treatment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (coninueq)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities and amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures - Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of

“currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous
realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose information
about rights of offset and related arrangements (such as collateral
posting requirements) for financial instruments under an enforceable
master netting agreement or similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim periods within
those annual periods. The disclosures should also be provided
retrospectively for all comparative periods. However, the amendments
to HKAS 32 are not effective until annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014, with retrospective application required.

The Directors anticipate that the application of these amendments to
HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more disclosures being made
with regard to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities in the
future and may impact the amount being offset in respect of the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2, FERHIERK
H

BHIA

$5] 2
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B EBRRER (&
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued) /\Zl-i%EFl $ﬁ2§ﬁ_,\| J (%8)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments EBMKARERESE £RTAE
HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the R-ZBENFEREMNE ST SR AEL

FORSIANEHEREEN B RTEN
MRE R _Z-ZFEITNEBYB
HRERFIRRETHERABN D

classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as
fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future
may have significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the
Group’s financial assets in respect of available-for-sale investments.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that
effect until a detailed review has been completed.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (coninueq)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements” that deal with consolidated financial
statements. HK(SIC) — INT 12 “Consolidation — Special purpose
entities” will be withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 10.
Under HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for consolidation, that is,
control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that
contains three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c)
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of
the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS
10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”. HKFRS
11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control should be classified. HK(SIC) — INT 13 “Jointly
controlled entities — Non-monetary contributions by venturers” will
be withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS
11, joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint
ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the parties to
the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types
of joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled
assets and jointly controlled operations. In addition, joint ventures
under HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted for using the equity
method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS
31 can be accounted for using the equity method of accounting or
proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the
current standards.
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64

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (coninueq)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures (continued)

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on the
application of these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating to the
transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013 with earlier application permitted provided that
all of these standards are applied at the same time.

The Directors anticipate that the application of these five standards
may have a significant impact on amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements. The application of HKFRS 10 may
result in the Group no longer consolidating some of its investees, and
consolidating investee that were not previous consolidated. However,
the Directors were not yet performed a detailed analysis of the impact
of the application of these standards and hence not yet quantified
the extent of the impact. A detailed review will be performed by the
Directors to determine and quantify the impact on the application of
HKFRS 10.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 introduce an exception to
consolidating subsidiaries for an investment entity, except where the
subsidiaries provide services that relate to the investment entity’s
investment activities. Under the amendments to HKFRS 10, an
investment entity is required to measure its interests in subsidiaries at
fair value through profit or loss.

To qualify as an investment entity, certain criteria have to be met.
Specifically, an entity is required to:

o obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose of
providing them with professional investment management
services;

o commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest

funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income, or both; and

o measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of its
investments on a fair value basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (coninueq)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities (continued)

Consequential amendments to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 have been
made to introduce new disclosure requirements for investment
entities.

The amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014,
with early application permitted. The Directors anticipate that the
application of the amendments will have no effect on the Group as
the Company is not an investment entity.

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The
scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about
fair value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive
than those in the current standards. For example, quantitative and
qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7
Financial instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13 to
cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the new standard
may affect certain amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and result in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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66

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (coninueq)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of

other comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income” introduce new terminology for the statement
of comprehensive income and income statement. Under the
amendments to HKAS 1, a ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is
renamed as a ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income’ and an ‘income statement’ is renamed as a ‘statement
of profit or loss’. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements. However,
the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive
income to be grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are
met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required
to be allocated on the same basis — the amendments do not change
the option to present items of other comprehensive income either
before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the
amendments are applied in future accounting periods.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, incomes and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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3.

68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the acquisition date
(see the accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their
fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
Standard.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently whenever there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of associates used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, investments in
associates are initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associates. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of an associate recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount
of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivables for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts,
returns and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and title has passed at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income for drilling services is recognised when services are
provided.

Revenue from hotel accommodation are recognised upon the
provisions of the accommodation services. Revenue from food and
beverage sales and other ancillary services are recognised upon the
provision of goods and services.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Rental income and licence fee income are recognised on a straight-

line basis over the term of the relevant lease and licence agreement.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Properties held for development
Properties held for development for sale in the future are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, comprising prepaid
lease payments for land and development costs, are included in
properties held for development until such time when they are
completed.

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purpose (other than properties, plant and equipment under
construction as described below) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
properties, plant and equipment (other than properties, plant and
equipment under construction) less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of properties, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

If an item of properties, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and the
fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of properties, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of properties, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Licenced properties, plant and equipment

Licenced properties, plant and equipment (included in properties,
plant and equipment) held to earn licence fee income are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised as to write off the cost of items of licenced
properties, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories are calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.

Licenced inventories

Licenced inventories shown as other non-current assets or other
current assets in the consolidated statement of financial position are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimate costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill (see

the accounting policy in respect of goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases and licence fee income are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease and licence agreement.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
properties, plant and equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the group entities are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that operation and retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ - E——F+_-A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sales, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of the
relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sale. If the
presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
for such investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments. The net gain or loss for available-for-sale investments
excludes any dividend or interest earned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ - E——F+_-A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, bills receivables, amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries, and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses. (See accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets below).

If during the current financial year or during the two preceeding
financial years, more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity
investments have been sold or reclassified before maturity (more
than insignificant in relation to the total amount of held-to-maturity
investments) other than sales or reclassifications under specified
limited circumstances described in HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and measurement”, the held-to-maturity investments are
tainted and no financial assets can be classified as held-to maturity
investments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-
sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or it becomes probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or the disappearance
of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ - E——F+_-A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period
and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in
which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses were recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition
of impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instrument issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expenses is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, bills
payables, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair values at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are deemed as
financial assets held for trading or financial liabilities held for trading
and are classified as current assets or current liabilities.

Hedge accounting

The Group used derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure
against changes in interest rate on bank borrowings. At the inception
of the hedging relationship the Group documents the relationship
between the hedging instrument and hedged item, along with its
risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and
on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging
instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highly effective in
offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged item.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as cash flow hedges are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. The gain
or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as other gain or losses.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (hedging reserve) are reclassified to profit or
loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or
loss, in the same line of the consolidated income statement as the
recognised hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the
hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and
is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected
to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of financial liabilities
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees of the Group

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in the share options reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss, such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4 EASHHUERMESSFR

JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumption are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if revision affects
both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying entity’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in consolidated financial
Statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties (notes 17 and 24)
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s certain investment
properties located in PRC of carrying amount of approximately
HK$199,969,000 at 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$61,870,000)
are held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, the Directors
have determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of such investment properties are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised deferred taxes
on land appreciation tax in respect of changes in fair value of such
investment properties but has recognised deferred tax on Enterprise
Income Tax on the assumption that these investment properties will
be recovered through use.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying entity’s accounting
policies (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties (notes 17 and 24)
(continued)

The investment properties located in Hong Kong and United Kingdom
of carrying amount of HK$27,520,000 and HK$686,340,000 at
31 December 2012 respectively (2011: located in Hong Kong
of HK$25,780,000) are not held under a business model whose
objective is to recover the economic benefits of the investment
properties entirely through use. Accordingly, no deferred tax is
recognised in respect of the fair value change in such investment
properties as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on
disposal of investment properties in Hong Kong and United Kingdom,
assuming that the Group is considered as a non-resident in United
Kingdom.

Legal claim (note 40)

The Group is involved in legal proceeding as disclosed in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements. Management has evaluated
and assessed the claims made against the Group based on legal
advice received and information presently available and are of the
view that the Group has grounds to successfully contest the claims.
Accordingly, no provision and accrual are made in the consolidated
financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continueq)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Depreciation and impairment of licenced properties, plant and
equipment (note 18)

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual value and related depreciation charges for its properties, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of properties, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are expected to be shorter than previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Change in these estimations
may have a material impact on the results of the Group. The Group
also tests whether its licenced properties, plant and equipment
have suffered any impairment in accordance with its accounting
policy whenever there is any indication that the assets may have
been impaired. The recoverable amounts of licenced properties,
plant and equipment have been determined based on discounted
cash flow method. The Directors consider that the recoverable
amount exceeded the carrying amount of the licenced properties,
plant and equipment and therefore, no impairment was recognised
at 31 December 2012 and 2011. As at 31 December 2012, the
carrying amounts of licenced properties, plant and equipment are
approximately HK$799,580,000 (2011: HK$944,218,000).

Recoverability of the licenced inventory (note 23)

As described in note 23, the licensee is required to return the licenced
inventory used, consumed or disposed during the licence period
to the Group at the end of the licence period, on 31 August 2013,
either by way of cash or identical inventory with the same value as
the licenced inventory used, consumed or disposed. The recoverable
amount of the licenced inventory used, consumed or disposed during
the licence period is secured by cash and bill receivables of a related
party of the Licencee (the “Securities”).

In determining the recoverable value of the Securities, the Group
takes into consideration the aging status, collection history, validity
and existence of the Securities at each month end and estimates the
recoverable value of the Securities. In this regard, the management of
the Company is satisfied that the risk is minimal and the recoverable
value of the Securities is not less than the licenced inventory used,
consumed or disposed at each month end.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimated impairment of trade receivables (note 28)

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is approximately HK$3,091,149,000
(2011: HK$3,026,009,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$176,919,000 (2011: HK$178,928,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net
of cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. In the opinion of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. €®mIA
6a. Categories of financial instruments 6a. ST AEER
2012 2011
—E-—F —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Financial assets MKEE
Loans and receivables (including cash and ~ X EEWEX(21ERE R
cash equivalents) ReEEEH)
— trade and other receivables - B 5 REMBEUKRER 3,197,796 3,152,371
— bills receivables - B RIR 1,250,298 1,592,009
— amounts due from fellow subsidiaries - YR RME A RIFIE 437,397 381,817
— bank balances and cash - RITEBR LIRS 2,328,204 2,602,674
7,213,695 7,728,871
Held-to-maturity investments REZREHRE 271,434
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 1,063,506 1,060,507
Financial liabilities MEaE
Amortised cost B HA AR
— trade and other payables - B5 REMEMIER 1,106,721 1,233,932
— bills payables - [ERT R 109,518 207,168
— amounts due to fellow subsidiaries - ERNRREMBARFIEA 32,447 31,061
— bank borrowings - IRITIEE 4,352,477 4,144,433
5,601,163 5,616,594
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (oniinueq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, held-to-maturity investments, bills
receivables, bank balances and cash, available-for-sale
investments, amounts due from (to) fellow subsidiaries, trade
and other payables, bills payables and bank borrowings.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 21% (2011: 17%) of the Group’s
sales are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entity making the sale, whilst
almost 22% (2011: 29%) of purchases are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are disclosed in respective notes. The
management continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign currency risk
should the need arise.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (oniinueq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation against foreign
currencies of United States dollars, Japanese Yen and
Hong Kong dollars. The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% (2011: 10%) increase and decrease in
functional currency against the relevant foreign currencies.
5% (2011: 10%) represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of reporting period for a 5% (2011: 10%) change in
foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes trade
and other receivables, available-for-sale debt investments,
held-to-maturity investments, bank balances, trade and
other payables, bills payable as well as bank borrowings. A
positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit
for the year where functional currency of each Group entity
strengthened 5% (2011: 10%) against the relevant currency.
For a 5% (2011: 10%) weakening of functional currency of
each Group entity against the relevant currency, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the
year.
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6.

L = R

6b.

United States dollars ET
Japanese Yen H
Hong Kong dollars BT

In the opinion of Directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent foreign exchange risk as the year
ended exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (oniinueq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (see note 33 for
details of these borrowings). In relation to these variable-rate
borrowings, the Group aims at keeping certain proportion of
its borrowings at fixed rates. In order to achieve this result,
prior to 2011 the Group had entered into interest rate swap
contracts to hedge against part of its exposure to potential
variability of cash flows arising from changes in variable rate.
However, during the year ended 31 December 2011 all
interest rate swap contracts were expired. The management
continuously monitors interest rate fluctuation and will
consider further hedging interest rate risk should the need
arise.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see note 33 for details of these
borrowings) and listed bond securities with fixed coupon
interest (see notes 20 and 21 for details of these listed bond
securities). The management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider repay the fixed-rate bank borrowings when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this
note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly related
to the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) and the interest rates offered by the People’s Bank
of China (“PBOC”) arising from the Group’s bank borrowings.

The Group’s bank balances have exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank balances. The Group is also exposed
to fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its fixed-rate
short term bank deposits and listed bond securities with fixed
coupon interest. The Directors consider the Group’s exposure
of the short-term bank deposits to interest rate risk is not
significant as interest bearing bank balances are within short
maturity period and fluctuation of savings interest rates on
bank balances is minimal.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for interest bearing bank
balances and bank borrowings at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2011:
50 basis points) increase or 10 basis points (2011: 10 basis
points) decrease are used and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If HIBOR/PBOC interest rate had been 50 basis points (2011:
50 basis points) higher and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s:

° post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2012
would decrease by HK$18,865,000 and nil (2011:
decrease by HK$18,344,000 and HK$3,729,000) as a
result of the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate borrowings and changes in the fair value
of available-for-sale listed bond securities with fixed
coupon interest respectively; and

° the credit side investment revaluation reserve as at 31
December 2012 would decrease by HK$8,564,000
(2011: nil) mainly as a result of the changes in the fair
value of available-for-sale listed bond securities with
fixed coupon interest.

If HIBOR/PBOC interest rate had been 10 basis points (2011:
10 basis points) lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s:

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2012
would increase by HK$3,773,000 and nil (2011:
increase by HK$3,669,000 and HK$755,000) as
result of the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate borrowings and changes in the fair value
of available-for-sale listed bond securities with fixed
coupon interest respectively; and

° the credit side investment revaluation reserve as at
31 December 2012 would increase by HK$1,738,000
(2011: HK$2,631,000) mainly as a result of the
changes in the fair value of available-for-sale listed
bond securities with fixed coupon interests.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (oniinueq)

6.

L = R

6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. HM¥EKREEEERBE
policies (continued) (#&)
Market risk (continued) migEE (&)
Interest rate risk (continued) FI&Ez g (48)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) FRE DT (E)

In the opinion of Directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent interest rate risk as the year
ended exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles and the Group has a
team to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the
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risk exposure should the need arise. Bz o
Sensitivity analysis BURE DT

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have been impaired at 31 December 2011,
had been 10% higher, post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2011 would increase by approximately HK$40,000
(2012: nil) as a result of the change in fair value of these
available-for-sale investments.

There would be an equal and opposite effect on post-tax
profit for the year if the prices of the respective available-for-
sale equity listed securities, which have been impaired, had
been 10% lower.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have not been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% higher, the credit side
investment revaluation reserve at 31 December 2012 would
increase by approximately HK$4,076,000 (2011: debit side
investment revaluation reserve decrease by approximately
HK$63,713,000) as a result of the change in fair value of
these available-for-sale investments.

There would be an equal and opposite effect on investment
revaluation reserve if the prices of the respective available-for-
sale equity listed securities, which have not been impaired,
had been 10% lower.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 % —

6.

——&F+-A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

At 31 December 2012, the Group has concentration of equity
price risk on its available-for-sale investments as 29.6%
(2011: 43.7%) of the total available-for-sale investments is
concentrated in one (2011: one) equity security listed in Hong
Kong. The Group’s available-for-sale investments are exposed
to equity price risk due to the fluctuation of price of the equity
in the market.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at
the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the board of
Directors has delegated the management to be responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk in relation to bank deposits and bank balances
is considered minimal as such amounts are placed with
banks with good credit ratings and there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers other than group
entities. However, the Group is exposed to the concentration
on geographic and industry segment of the PRC and laminate
industry, respectively. At 31 December 2012, approximately
92% (2011: 92%) of the Group’s trade and other receivables
are arising from the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ - E——F+_-A=+—HILFE

6.

98

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (oniinueq)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are concentrated on
a few counterparties. However, the credit risk on amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries is limited because of the strong

financial background of the fellow subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2012, the Group has concentration of credit
risk on its available-for-sale debt investments as 46.9%
(2011: 25.6%) of the total available-for-sale investments is
concentrated in one (2011: one) listed bond securities issued
by one (2011: one) listed issuer in Hong Kong. The Group’s
available-for-sale listed bond securities are exposed to credit
risk due to the default of repayment by the bond issuers.
However, the Directors considered that the credit risk on
these investments are limited as the listed bond securities
were secured by certain assets of the issuers and issued by

issuers in Hong Kong with good creditability.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had concentration risk on
its held-to-maturity investments with 59.1% (2012: nil) of the
total held for maturity concentrated in a listed bond security
issued by a listed issuer in Hong Kong. The Group’s held-for-
maturity listed bond securities were exposed to credit risk due
to the default of repayment by the bond issuers. However, the
Directors considered that the credit risk on these investments
are limited as the listed bonds were secured by certain assets
of the issuers and issued by issuers in Hong Kong with
strong financial background and assigned with high credit
ratings by international credit rating agencies. These held-to-
maturity investments were disposed during the year ended 31

December 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ - E——F+_-A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants
during the year.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. At 31 December 2012, the Group has
available unutilised bank borrowing facilities of approximately
HK$7,260,943,000 (2011: HK$5,016,160,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF 75 = Ff 23

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6- ﬁﬂIE‘s(%)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. HKEMREEBEEREE
policies (continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (continued) REESRE(E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables FEE L RFIFRERRZ
Weighted Over Over Over
average On demand 3months 1 year 2years Total
effective orlessthan ~ butnotmore  butnotmore butnotmore undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3months  thaniyear  than2years  than5years cash flows amount
T RERS AN —EH)E MERL EZiE)
Tk fiAR  BFEE-F ETEERE [ETEERE RERELE REE
% HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEn TEL TEn TiEL TEL TiEL

At 31 December 2012 W-8-Z#+-f=1-R
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTERBER
Trade and other payables ESREMERER - 1,106,721 - - - 1,106,721 1,106,721
Bils payables EfZE - 109,518 - - - 109,518 109,518
Amounts due to felow subsicaries ERRZHELAE - Q.41 = = = Q.41 2441
Bank borrowings - variable rate REE-28 216 686,736 702,405 1,649,038 1,497,943 4,536,122 4350477
1,035,422 702,405 1,649,038 1,497,943 5,784,808 5,601,163
Weighted Over Over Over
average On demand 3months 1year 2 years Totdl
effective orlessthan ~ butnotmore  butnotmore  butnotmore  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months thanTyear  than2vyears  than5years cash flows amount
T BERS  ZREANLE —FHE AEM L Eizii)
ERA= ZEAR  BRBA-F  BTEARE ETRERE  RENSEE HEE
% HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
AR AT AR AT AR AL
At 31 December 2011 R-8--%+=A=1-R
Non-derivative financial liabilities HitHBEE
Trade and other payables B RAMEMNESR - 1233932 - - - 1233932 1233932
Bills payables EfiRE - 207,168 - - - 207,168 207,168
Amounts dug to felow subsidiares ERRANBARNE - 31,061 - - - 31,061 31,061
Bank borrowings - variable rate HTEE-28 14 43446 630,762 859,445 2820723 4,354,376 4144433

1,615,607 630,762 859,445 2,820,723 5,826,537 5,616,594
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinveq)

6¢C.

Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices;

the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis and relevant pricing models using prices
or rates from observable current market transactions;
and

the fair value of available-for-sale listed bond securities
is determined based on valuation techniques using
inputs that can be observed in the market in addition
to unobservable inputs such as credit rating assigned
to the bond.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
assets or liabilities that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF 75 = Ff 23

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (oniinueq)

6¢c. Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets AL EHBEE
Listed equity securities LikAES
Listed bond securities ISR

6. EMI Ay
6c. ATEE)
HE ()

At 31 December 2012
R-B-—-F+=-A=t+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E—8 -t E=8
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHET TR FiER

407,594 =
- 498,420

At 31 December 2011
RZE——F+ZA=+—H

REEUBRRRER 2D FE

Total
At
HK$’000
FTiER

407,594
498,420

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£—8 E-H E=H &5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET FAT

Available-for-sale financial assets A EHKEE
Listed equity securities LikAES 637,530 - - 637,530
Listed bond securities iSRS - - 271,635 271,635
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (oniinueq)

6¢C.

Fair value (continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of
financial assets

AR I R

6. @I Hwu

6c. DFEE)
FoEYKEEATENEZY
R

Listed bond
securities
tHESES
HK$’000
FHET

At 1 January 2011
Disposal He&
Reclassification to held-to-maturity investments
Total gain in other comprehensive income

At 31 December 2011
Addition NE
Disposal HE
Total gain in other comprehensive income

At 31 December 2012

Included in other comprehensive income is a gain of
HK$41,941,000 (2011: gain of HK$2,108,000) relate to listed
bond securities held at the end of the reporting period and is
reported as changes of investment revaluation reserve for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

H-F——%—F—A

BN BEREREIMRE
oA 2 [ et 2 W ER 4R

RZE——F+ZA=+—H

HAh 2 W et 2 W a4 5

RZZE——F+=-A=+—H

403,191
(54,600)
(79,064)

2,108

271,635
1,239,668

(1,054,824)
41,941

498,420

REMEREAREZ LTEFK
41,941,000 T (ZF——F « s
2,108,000 L)  EWBIEREHE=Z
——F+-A=+-—BHUIEEzHME
AR 2RARESHHEED -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ - E——F+_-A=+—HILFE

7.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable by the
Group from the sales of goods, provision of drilling services, income
from property investment and licence fee income (note 18) provided
to outside customers, net of discounts, returns and sales related
taxes. Analysis of revenue for the year is as follows:

AR I R P A

wiNE3 7

LR

EXERARERBLINEFPHER
o RREILRTS - MERE RIREK
SERE(ME18) TR KBRS » 8
i RERAAREER AR FE -
BENAMT

Sales of glass epoxy laminates

Sales of paper laminates SHE M EIRAER
Sales of upstream materials SHE _EhFkt
Others Efth

Income from property investment MR EWA

Sales of laminates includes glass epoxy laminates and paper
laminates manufactured according to specifications required by
customers. Sales of upstream materials includes sales of copper foil,
epoxy resin, glass fabric and bleached kraft paper. Others comprise
drilling service, which involves the drilling of holes into the laminates
required by customers and sales of specialty resin and other materials
and licence fee income. Income from property investment include
rental income from leasing of investment properties, income from
hotel accommodation and income from food and beverage and other
ancillary services of the hotel operation.
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HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
7,186,224 7,807,483
2,487,842 2,662,383
1,816,204 1,881,718
919,421 853,395
73,536 -
12,483,227 13,204,979

BERNERNEEBRNAEPEEEX
RIREIIE M B IR EAR N A E R E
REVIHE » LR IHE B EHER
S IREHE - WIEERH IR AR
Mo R BREREEFAFREERRET
REFLEBILIRTS - SHERBRE B
YR ERREEERE - MERER
ABREEKEDENES WA - BIE
{78 YA SA BB T 375 H0 B AR I B A
HARTSHIA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ - E——F+_-A=+—HILFE

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating and reportable segments have been identified
on the basis of internal management reports prepared in accordance
with the accounting policies conform to HKFRSs, that are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM”) of the Group, in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performances.

In the previous years, the executive directors only review the revenue
and overall operating results derived from the sales of goods and
provisions of drilling services on an aggregated basis and considered
them as one single operating segment. Therefore, other than analysis
on revenue (see note 7), no information on segment revenue and
results was presented.

Upon acquisition of Linkfit Investment Holdings Limited (“Linkfit”),
which is primarily involved in hotel ownership and operation (explained
in note 37), and the continuing expansion of the property development
and investment operation in the current year, the Group’s operations
have been organised based on two operating divisions as described
below. Similarly, the information reported to the CODM is also
prepared on such basis. No operating segments identified by the
CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments
of the Group.

The operating segments of the Group are as follows:

° Laminates operations (“Laminates”) — manufacturing and
sales of laminates and upstream materials and other material,
drilling services and licence fee income.

° Property development and investment (“Properties”) —
development of properties held for sale and property
investments, generating income from property investment as
described in note 7.

The executive directors assess segment profit or loss using a measure
of operating profit whereby certain items are not included in arriving at
the segment results of the operating segments (share of result of an
associate, gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments and held-
to-maturity investments, gain on deemed disposal of an associate,
income tax expenses, finance costs, share-based payments and
unallocated corporate income and expenses).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8- ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂ(%)
(a) Segment revenue and results (a) oHEEBREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results BIEEERE D IS LN EE
by operating segments: ST -

Laminates Properties Consolidated

R E R LYES =a

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET FET

Year ended 31 December 2012

Segment revenue

Segment results

Gain on deemed disposal of
an associate

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Gain on disposal of held-to-maturity
investments

Share-based payments

Unallocated corporate income

Unallocated corporate expenses

Finance costs

Share of result of an associate

Profit before taxation

BE-_E2--%+=A

=+—HIEE
D EBE R 12,409,691
DEBFELE 1,318,868

BIEHE—HEBZ AR
ZWzs
HEAHEERE L
Yas
HEREREMREZ
Yas
PARBCAD FZ AR
Evel PA/NCIL N
ADB 2 RAIX
BERA
EiE—EBERRZ
ES

BRI A A
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73,536 12,483,227

4,850 1,323,718

30,377

64,438

23,728
(30,847)
112,176
(86,367)
(94,025)

2,248

1,345,446




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (oniinueq)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by operating segments:

At 31 December 2012 R-ZB——F+=8
=+—H
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE
Unallocated corporate assets: KOMZ REVEE
- Deferred tax assets —RIERIBE E
— Taxation recoverable — AT EIFE 18
- Bank balances and cash —iRITER LR
- Others —HAh
Consolidated total assets IR EERE
Liabilities aE
Segment liabilities NEEE
Unallocated corporate liabilities: KO ARIEE
— Bank borrowings —RITEE
— Deferred tax liabilities —EEHIARE
— Taxation payable — FEBTRIR
— Others —EA
Consolidated total liabilities shBaEREAE

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

. all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than deferred tax assets, taxation recoverable, bank
balances and cash and other assets used jointly by
operating segments; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than bank borrowings, deferred tax liabilities, taxation
payable and other liabilities for which operating
segments are jointly liable.

AR I R P A

8. TEER®

b) ABEERKER
REEEEEH BEAERARS

MR -

Laminates Properties Consolidated
R E R LS =E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FET FHET

15,432,402 2,369,918 17,802,320
1,063,506

4,111
7,063
294,945
101,888

19,273,833

(1,450,075) (108,455) (1,558,530)

(4,352,477)
(98,144)
(302,000)
(71,996)

(6,383,147)

REFENIREARRD HEIEER -

. BORERIREE - AT EAIA -
RITHEBR IR S URLE DB
F{ERZ EEES  IBEE
BORESHEEDE R

. BIRITIEE ELEHIBAE - &
BRBEREE D BHRAAEZE
hRESN - FIARESDEEL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B 75 = B 23

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ - E——F+_-A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (ontinueq) 8.
(c) Other information
Laminates
EHER
HK$'000
TERT
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-E-—FE+=A
=+-ALEE
Amounts included in the measure of FESBERID T
segment profit or loss or segment assets:  BERFAZ SHE
Capital additions BIRIER 551,510
Depreciation and amortisation EREE 694,920
Release of prepaid lease payments ENEEFIERD 10,344
Loss on disposal of properties, plant HEWE  BERZ
and equipment pd i 47,924
Impairment loss on trade and 25 Rt KRR 2
other receivable REEE 11,566
Interest income FIEHA 7,540

The Group principally operates in the PRC (other than Hong
Kong) (country of domicile) with revenue and profits derived
mainly from its operations in the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from
external customers by geographical location of the customers:

D EBE R )
(c) HiER
Unallocated
Properties amount  Consolidated
S APBEH &E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET THET FET

798,240 1,349,750
14,125 709,045
2,268 12,612

47,924

11,566
78,282

AEETFEXHRUNPECH
BREER)(AKEZMER)
EEBEMENETERAFEE
ﬁ% o

RIBINEDE P MR REI D 2
SEEXBEITWT

2012 2011
—g-—=-5  -T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

The PRC (country of domicile) PR (AREE 2 FTEih)
Other foreign countries: EA MBI
Other Asian countries HAbTMBER
Europe BRM
America EM

Revenue from one of the Group’s customers amounted
to HK$1,618,568,000 (2011: HK$2,026,694,000), which
individually accounted for over 10% of the Group’s revenue
for the year.
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11,482,874 12,232,709
870,581 800,083

76,623 111,310
53,149 60,877

12,483,227 13,204,979

REEEEF —BEFEME ¥
#A1E 51,618,568,000/8 (==
——4F : 2,026,694,000/6 7T )
(HEERNF NS EERBIR10% °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ - E——F+_-A=+—HILFE

AR I R P A

2N =

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (oninueq) 8. ZoEER W
(c) Other information (continued) (c) HtERG®E
The geographical analysis of the Group’s non-current assets BRIBEETRIEEE - EMIEREE
other than deferred tax assets, other non-current assets E(MF23) « At HERE -
(note 23), available-for-sale investments, held-to-maturity BEZINHRERIERDT S
investments and non-current deposits by location of assets is oN o REBSERBEEREEM
presented as follows: AT EFT ¢
2012 2011
—E-CF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
PRC (country of domicile) H B (NS B 2 FrfEih) 6,179,091 5,746,555
Hong Kong 55 40,351 32,890
United Kingdom R 686,340 -
OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HtA - & REHE

2012 2011
—B-CF —
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET T

Other income, gains and losses include:

Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments

Gain on fair value changes of investment
properties

Interest income from available-for-sale
investments

Interest income from held-to-maturity
investments (Note)

Other interest income

Net exchange gain

Gain on disposal of properties, plant and
equipment

HAWA - W REREE

A ERE Y
B BHA

REMERFEED
Z s

A EREY
L SHA

RERRIEREZ
S (HIRE)

HAF BHA

bEE i Wi H R

HEWE - BER
Rz s

Note:  Included in interest income for the year ended 31 December 2012 is the
amortisation of discount of held-to-maturity investments of HK$1,052,000

(2011: amortisation of premium of HK$116,000).

19,374

9,300
19,338
20,745

8,435
12,621

3,632

Mz BERBEE-Z——-F+-A=+—H
IFFERFSRA BB RITE 25
HA18 41,052,000 (=T ——F : i
{E#$5116,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ - E——F+_-A=+—HILFE

10.

11.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON AVAILABLE-
FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2011, impairment loss on
available-for-sale investments of HK$1,919,000 (2012: nil) was
recognised as a result of significant or prolonged decline in its fair
value below its cost of a listed equity investment and impairment loss
of a listed bond security because the fair value of the listed bond
security is below its cost.

FINANCE COSTS

AR I R P A

m.%ﬁ&%&ﬁZﬁﬁE

REE-ZT—F+=_fF=+—HLF
ER - AR R ETRAEEN QA FE
BEIRPENREXRE  UAREAE—
R EMEHFBHFAFEEREKAEM
BRISRERE - ALirErfEER
&2 REEE1,919,0008 T (=F—=
FfE) o

11. @ERK

2012 2011
—EB——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable
within five years

Interest paid in relation to the interest rate
swap contracts

Less: Amounts capitalised in the construction
in progress

BROFAEREEZ

IRITEERNE 89,952
FIRBEIE 4 2 FEEF B S
10,100
99,141 100,052
B FEETIZA
BRI &5 (5,116) (6,094)
94,025 93,958

The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed generally
is 2.2% per annum (2011: 2.1% per annum).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ - E——F+_-A=+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

AR I R P A

12. FiEBiAx

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

The amount comprises:

Hong Kong Profits Tax
Underprovision in previous years

PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Charge for the year

Deferred taxation
Charge for the year (note 24)

BIABIE -

FRMEMR
BEFERETR

FREMEMSHA
AEFEZBIAS

BT

AEE (M E24)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008

onwards.

322

176,555 174,422
2,454 1,906
179,505 176,650

BTSRRI ME G ERROEF
LA16.5% 2 i RFTE o

RIBHBECEMESBOE([REMFR
ED REEMBTEERED - AEE
EFENFRARNREE _TTN\F—
H—R#E525% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ —E——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation as

follows:

VAN
AN

12.

A5 R P o

B e

Profit before taxation

Tax charge at the domestic income tax rate of
25% (2011: 25%) (note a)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose

Underprovision in previous years

Tax effect of Tax Concession/Tax Holiday
(note b)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions/areas
other than the domestic income tax rate

Effect of tax exempted profit (note c)

BR AT A

AE TSR 25%
(ZZ2——%F : 26%)itHZ
M H (K iEa)

MBREME TAHRERZ
MIGE &

MBIET & BARRBAZ
MIGE &

BEFERBTR

HREE RHRAZHBETE
(PFifaEb)

RERHBBRZRETE

B RIARRER
MIEER

BREIARRFTSHSN
REM BEDERER, ML
MEBARZ TRAME 28

HegBan z 22 (MiEe)

Tax expense for the year REE 2 HBHZ
Notes:
() The domestic income tax rate of 25% (2011: 25%) represents the

PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of which the Group’s operations are

substantially based.

(b) Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain subsidiaries
of the Company in the PRC are exempted from PRC Enterprise Income
Tax for two years starting from the first profit-making year in which profits
exceed any carried forward tax losses followed by a 50% reduction in the
income tax rate in the following three years (“Tax Holiday”). The Tax Holiday

enjoyed by these subsidiaries expired on 2012.

Pursuant to the EIT Law, a High-New Technology Enterprise shall be
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% for three years since it was officially
endorsed. Eight subsidiaries in the PRC obtained official endorsement as a
High-New Technology Enterprise (“Tax concession”).

(©) Profits arising from certain subsidiaries of the Company in Macau are

exempted from profits tax.
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AR B 2 T A B BR B AR R 2 AR 0

T

2012 2011

—2-=F —

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR T

1,345,446 1,634,488

336,362 383,622

5,143 13,648

(37,222) (13,322)

496 322

(13,968) (12,964)

11,437 5,527

(1,974) (1,847)

(9,659) (9,208

(111,110) (189,133)

179,505 176,650
G

(@  EHAEBBRE%(—F——%F

25% ) FE AR BAR BB D E PR T E

CEFERE -

(o) RIFPEERAREER  AREET
TEMB AR B & EEFFE (LR
BB AR BB EE) B MER
ERRHRTECEMRSN - BRR=F
PSR R50%([2HM]) - %%
MBARFAZERIN T ——FF

e

RIBECEMEHE - SRR R
HER T RALTEERIM=FmM15%7
KEE - \FTEMBAREE TR
REAEmEE(THRRES]) -

(© ARRARFIZETHBARMES
2 TR R BANTIST



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 B 78 = B 23

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ —E——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

13. AFEEF

2012
—E-CF
HK$’000
TR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after
charging (crediting):

Depreciation of properties, plant and
equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments

Net exchange loss (gain)
—included in cost of sales
—included in other income, gain and losses

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories sold

Loss (gain) on disposal and write off of
properties, plant and equipment

Share-based payments

Total staff costs other than share-based
payments, including directors’ emoluments
(see note 14)

Rental income

Direct operating expenses in relation to
investment properties

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 14.

A A 2 A HIRR (FEA)
ANAR

ME - BER
BAEITE 709,045
TE AR E AR D 12,612
721,657
P& 5 8518 (Yias ) ) F 88
— s AHERAR 2,499
—FFAEMBA - W REE (6,872)
(4,373)
ZE AN 2 3,000
BEEFE KA 10,355,228
e R
R Ko 7% 2 s 1E (U s ) 47,924
AR AT R 30,847
B TR 4A%E
(AR FE AT FRER SN
BREESMHES(RWE14) 446,478
AW A (26,449)
WEMHEZ BEELE
X 626

2011
T4
HK$’000
TFET

780,285
8,375

788,660
(17,223)
(12,521)
(29,744)

3,000
10,827,865

(3,632)
69,052
486,972
(17,036)

524

EX - THARKES

AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS <&
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments (@) EBERTHBEAZME
The emoluments paid or payable were as follows: ESERN ST
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Fees ek 884
Other emoluments: Hi il -
Salaries and other benefits e MEMmER 12,737
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme 3R ki@ FIET 211 2% 569
Performance related incentive payment T {ERIFBENFIE
(Note 4) (Fff5E4) 61,351
Share-based payments LA D S 50 44,191
119,732
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E+-A=t—BILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z =& —

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a)

(continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the thirteen (2011:

fourteen) Directors and the Chief Executive were as follows:

4= A

2N =

g el E

14. E > THHEIBREE

[ EACD

(@)

Year ended 31 December 2012
HECE-Er-AST-ALEE

ESRITHRARME (@)

ENgEN =22 ——
F AR EBERITHREEY
BT -

Chan Mok I
Cheung  Cheung  Cheung Lam  Cheung  Chan Zhou Lo Yue  Leung Yiu Shu
Kwok  Kwok  Kwok Ka Ka Sau Liu Pei Ka  Kwong, Tai  Keung,  Kwan,
Wa  Keung Ping Po Ho Chi Min Feng  Leong  Michael Chiu  Peter  Stephen Total
FEE REER FAY MIXE E3® O RRE HY BEE  BRR RMX RBE  ERE EME 0 ai
HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000
Thn  TEn  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn  TEn  TEr  TERn TEm TR THn TER
(Note 1) (Note 3)
(H1) (Hit3)
Fees e
Other emoluments: s
Salaries and other benefis %4 ;&4
Contrbutions to refirement AR
benefits scheme HE ) 106 112
Performance related IR
incentive payment BEE
Note 4 (Fite) 15900 12400 12400
Sharebased payments  MRATA R 3856 3547 3085
Total emoluments Heas 0318 18302 17846
Year ended 31 December 2011
HEE--Ff-Azt-ALEE
Chan Mok Ip
Cheung  Cheung  Cheung lam  Chewng  Chan Zhou Lo Chan Yoo Leung Yiu Shu
Kwok — Kwok Kok Ka Ka Sau Liu Pei Ka Chamwut ~ Kwong, Ta Keung,  Kwan,
Wa  Keung Ping Po Ho Chi Min Feng  Leong Bemard  Michael Chu  Pefer Stephen  Total
FEE RER  FEAT %R F3% WAY M@ @Bk By BER R 2md mEm ERE &
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKBOO0 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKEO0OD HKS0D HKSO0
Thn T T TR TEr TEn T TEr TR A TEr TEr TR TR TEn
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
(Bt (i) (i)
Fees Lk - - - - - - - - - - 188 188 188 30 884
Other emoluments: 2hils
Sdaresandother benefls  FEREMRR 2476 2101 2260 1846 138 -8 115 60 - - - - 17
Contrbutions torefrement g%
benefits scheme SR 115 9 10 9 55 - 3 R 3 - - - - - 569
Performance related =3
incenive payment BB
(Note 4) (Riska) 16500 12801 12800 12800 4000 550 800 1100 - - - - - - 613
Sharebasedpayments  HURGFARE 8631 790 605 605 6905 605 - - - - - - - TR
Total emoluments Hesm 202 281 2009 1643 12345 745 1586 186 1163 60 188 188 188 30 19732
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ - E——F+_-A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments
(continued)

Neither the chief executive nor any of directors waived any
emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011.

Notes:

(1) Ms. Chan Sau Chi resigned as executive director of the Company
on 1 October 2012.

2) Mr. Chan Charnwut Bernard was retired as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 3 May 2011.

Q) Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 4 May 2011.

4) The performance related incentive payment is determined with
reference to the operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics during both years.

Chief Executive’s emoluments

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the Directors had
waived any emoluments during the years ended 31 December
2011 and 2012.

Employees’ emoluments
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, all of the
five highest paid employees are directors.

During both years, no emoluments were received or
receivable by the Directors or the Group’s five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

AR I R P A

14. E - THEABREES

(a)

(b)

(c)

z (%)

ESRTHRARME (@)

BE_ TR _T——F
TZA=t—HLEFE - #87T
RS EEREEMME -

Wi

M RELNER-_T——F+
A—RBHEARBHMITES »

©) REBEER-_T——FH
A=RRERARE LD
TES -

(©) ERBEEN_F——F1
AOREZRERARRIEY
FEMITES -

@ THERREBMKEBEDZER
BEFEEZLEES  BAAX
BRLBMISEIRERE

THERMNE
SREREETARRRZITHE
B EXFRBEAEMSEREE
FEETRAHENME -

BE-F—FR-T--F
T A=t - BT
BHNEEHREAWS -

EEME
HE-ZT——FR-_ZF——F
TZA=T—HLESFE 285
EEEFeREREHAES -

RMEFEAR  EFXAKER
HEREHEATHECS KRR
EAE - ERREIKE NEAR
SEFMBARER X2 B
SKIF AR e -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ - E——F+_-A=+—HILFE

15. DIVIDENDS

1 5! Hﬁl%\
2012
—E-—F
HK$’000
FTER

Dividends paid:
Interim dividend for the year ended
31 December 2012 of HK5 cents
(for the year ended 31 December 2011:
HK10 cents) per ordinary share

Final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2011 of HK5 cents
(for the year ended 31 December 2010:
HK18 cents) per ordinary share

Dividend proposed:

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31

December 2012 of HK12 cents
(for the year ended 31 December 2011:
HKS5 cents) per ordinary share

The final dividend of HK12 cents per ordinary share amounted to
HK$360,000,000 in total in respect of the year ended 31 December
2012 (2011: final dividend of HK5 cents per ordinary share in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2011) has been proposed by the
Directors and is subject to the approval by the shareholders of the
Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BERE

EIREMALE. -
HE-Z——F+=A4
=+ HALFEFHRE
BRERBRSEL(EZ
—2——F+ZA=+—H
LEFE - 107400)
(ZEZF—F+=A
=+ HALFERBRE
G mARS L
(BHz=—Z2—ZF+=A
=+—HIEFE - 185L)

150,000

150,000

300,000

(E-F-—F+-A=+—H
IFFEERARBRE

BRRE @R 28
(BEZZT——F1+=A

Z+—HIEFE  558) 360,000

e TTRAIER e
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ERCEBREHET
—t—BLFERARBERLT AR
12BN ZE—F 2T —F
+Z A=+ —HILEFEREBREFRYE
AR5 (L) A ££360,000,000/5 7T + 1
BEARRRFENEERFAFASH

2011
—T——fF
HK$’000

THET

300,000

540,000

840,000

150,000

——%+=A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ - E——F+_-A=+—HILFE

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

AR I R P A

16. SREF

ARBEAANBIEEREARNIZ T

Profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company

RRBFA AEIEFE G

Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
calculating basic earnings per share

SHEEREAENZ
EE

No diluted earnings per share has been presented for the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011 in respect of the assumed effects of
share options granted in 2011 as the exercise price of the share
options of the Group was higher than the average market price during
the respective years.

RS -

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
1,324,958

Number of shares

BROEE

2012 2011
—E—CF —E——F
’000 000
¥ T
3,000,000 3,000,000

HE-_ZT——frk-_FT—%+=A
—t+—HIFE  TEZIGRETR
M BEZZS——FEBRTZELER
T EERREEFANTIESFEY
fgo
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ - E——F+_-A=+—HILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REY=

HK$’'000
FHT

FAIR VALUE ARE
At 1 January 2011 R-ZE—F—HF—H 75,624
Exchange adjustments P& H FE 2,726
Increase in fair value NFEE I 9,300
At 31 December 2011 R_E—F+-_A=+—H 87,650
Exchange adjustments R Q)
Additions NE 686,240
Acquired from acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) s B P 128 X R i JE B (Y 5E37) 138,100
Increase in fair value NFEEIE 1,840
At 31 December 2012 R-_E——HF+-_A=+—H 913,829

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2012 and 2011 had been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by Roma Appraisal Limited, independent qualified
valuers not connected to the Group. Roma Appraisal Limited is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The valuation was
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The carrying value of investment properties shown above comprises:

ARBBANERN T —FR-F
——F—+=A=t—AZAFEDE
SN B ARE Y W A AR5 A
BEABFEARAR - RKAEITHE
EZEEEH - REERFEERAT
AERABMFEWE - RRMHENS
ZRUE R HEEZTEOEEE -

AREEERREVE 2 38 AR EW R B
BHAORBE ZFREMERER - BFRAR
RHERNGTE - XN BRINEREY
R

M ERBYREREDS -
2012 2011
= =T %
HK$°000 HK$’000
T TR

Property interests situated in Hong Kong

under: VIR
Medium-term lease AR EATEAY

Property interests situated outside

Hong Kong under: 2R
Medium-term lease AR EAFRAY
Long lease REAMEA
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BTIIEORERRALZ

B IIEHNREBAINGE

25,780
166,169 28,070
720,140 33,800
886,309 61,870
913,829 87,650
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

18. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND 18. % - BER%RE

EQUIPMENT
Properties,
plant and
Furniture, equipment
Buildings Leasehold Plant and Licenced fixtures and Motor under
forown use  improvements machinery assets equipment vehicles  construction Total
ik RE fHA%E EENE
BREF  UXEE  REREE  FREE kit RE  HERRE &t
HKS 000 HK§'000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$ 1000 HK§ 1000 HK$ 1000 HKS 000
T TR T TR T T T T
Note)
(B3t)
COST FiA
A1 January 2011 RZF-——%-A-A 1,064,339 2646 8149114 - 264,202 57,953 277 10269530
Exchange adjustments EHAE 46,044 106 369,493 14,047 13,934 2658 29413 475,6%
Addions AE - - 84,208 - 49,589 6,683 294,708 435208
Disposals and wite of HE R - - (184,004) - 7.282) (3389) (37) (195,022)
Reclassifcations ENNE - - 518,538 - 103,816 1,083 (618.437) -
Reclassfiied to ioenced assets ENNEERERRAE (358,281 - 00405 2428209 - 052%) - -
At 31 December 2011 R-B—E+-F=t-8 74210 2,751 6871964 2442056 424,259 56,465 M6614 10985411
Bxchange adjustments EXEE 62 k) 1519 602) % 17 918 1975
Addiions g - 17,844 98,069 - 17,939 7153 403,484 544,489
Accuired from acquistion of subsiciaries WEhBAAITES
[note37) (Hizkan) 450422 - 22,300 - 40400 1400 - 514522
Disposals and write off HE R - - (167,072) - (1.981) (664) (4,491) (174,208)
Reclassifcations ENAE - - 93592 - 6,086 - (99678) -
At 31 December 2012 RIB-ZETZB=1-0  1,192586 067 69032 244165 486,732 63,371 46847 11872189
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT TERRE
At January 2011 RZF—%-A-A 310279 2511 4,382,901 - 102202 45,192 S4BT
Bxchange adjustments ] 11,304 9% 195,189 9517 6,069 2010 - 204187
Provided for the year TEERG 30,888 142 621,502 50,632 70,162 4959 - 780,285
Eiminated on disposals and wite off LR R - - (65,129) - (6,753 (3140) - 75022)
Reclassifed to licenced assets ENNBERERRAE (122409 - (1306416 1497889 - (6,070) - -
At31 December 2011 R-B——E+-F=+-8B 232068 2751 388047 1498038 171,700 40551 - 5773155
Exchange adustments EfAE 5 7 745 127 9% 3 - 1033
Provided for the year TEEEE 31816 2017 485,747 143,909 40,404 3072 - 700,045
Eliminated on disposals and write off HEBHERIS - - (101,058) - (1,847) (587) - (103.492)
At 31 December 2012 RIZ-#t-F=+t-B 283997 48% 4213481 1,642,074 212375 43039 - 637974
CARRYING VALUE BEE
At 31 December 2012 RIE-ZF+ZA=T-H 98649 1,792 2,706,891 799,580 274,357 20,332 746,847 5492448
At31 December 2011 R-B——E+-F=t-8  5100% - 3043917 914,218 262559 14914 614 521225
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

18. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

All the Group’s buildings for own use are situated in the PRC on land
held under medium-term leases.

The above items of properties, plant and equipment (other than those
under construction) are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the

AR I R P A

18. W% - BMEKFE

AEEE I ERBFOMR AT R
FANTE LM -

Hiix - BEREREERB (BREZRE
BINRIATFEL AR RELERTR

following rates per annum: e -
Buildings for own use* Over the remaining unexpired S)=sps == IHRBREL AN TR RTL
terms of the leases from twenty RFEHR =1
to fifty years ERTF(AREE
R%E)
Leasehold improvements 10-20% HOMEEE 10—20%
Plant and machinery* 10-20% WE ke 10—20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10-331/3% B HER  10—335%
equipment B354
Motor vehicles* 20% JRER 20%
* included those grouped under licenced assets * PRSI EEREFEAEENZSIEE
Note: YI5E -
Licenced assets comprised of the following: BRERAEEREATSE -
Buildings for Plant and
own use machinery Motor vehicles Total
BEREF &5 Ko e 2 B =H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FRET FET FHET FAET
CosT B
Reclassification Exciboy| 358,281 2,060,405 9,523 2,428,209
Exchange adjustments & 5 % 2,152 11,840 55 14,047
At 31 December 2011 RZZ—F+=-A=+—8H 360,433 2,072,245 9,578 2,442,256
Exchange adjustments &N A% (89) (511) @) (602)
At 31 December 2012 RZE—=F+=A=+—H 360,344 2,071,734 9,576 2,441,654
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT  #7& KRlE
Provided for the year NEERE 2,374 48,117 141 50,632
Reclassification B 122,403 1,306,416 9,070 1,437,889
Exchange adjustments [ 55 A= 844 8,617 56 9,517
At 31 December 2011 R-Z——F+-_A=+—H 125,621 1,363,150 9,267 1,498,038
Exchange adjustments X AR ®) 135 @ 127
Provided for the year REE B 7,247 136,454 208 143,909
At 31 December 2012 RZE—=F+=A=+—H 132,862 1,499,739 9,473 1,642,074
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 December 2012 RZE—=F+=A=+—H 227,482 571,995 103 799,580
At 31 December 2011 RZZ—F+=-A=+—8H 234,812 709,095 311 944,218
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

18. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND 18. Y% - BERZE =

EQUIPMENT (continued)

On 3 August 2011, a subsidiary of Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings
Limited (“KBCF” or the “Licensor”) (KBCF is a listed subsidiary of
the Group), entered into a licence agreement with Harvest Resource
Management Limited (the “Licencee”), who is an independent third
party, to licence KBCF’s copper foil manufacturing facilities located at
Fogang and Lianzhou to the licencee for the period from 1 September
2011 to 31 August 2013 as follows:

(i) to use the leasehold properties, comprising factory buildings
in Fogang and Lianzhou;

(i) to use, consume and dispose of the inventory which shall
include consumables and stocks in trade; and

(iii) to use the machinery, together with all other equipment and
facilities as from time to time located at the properties in
Fogang and Lianzhou.

The licenced properties, plant and equipment tabulated above and
the licenced inventories in note 23 were licenced for licence income
of HK$10,000,000 per month payable in advance on the first day of
each and every calendar month, as a short-term measure by KBCF to
generate income from the copper foil manufacturing facilities, pending
the resolution of the interested party transactions issue, relating to
the manufacturing and trading of copper foil, with the non-controlling
shareholder of KBCF (note 40) and the approval of the interested
party transactions mandate by the shareholders and/or when KBCF
clinched new third parties customers for the sales of copper foil.
Accordingly, the licenced properties, plant and equipment have been
reclassified as licenced assets under properties, plant and equipment.

The Group conducted a review of the recoverable amount of its
licenced properties, plant and equipment determined based on their
value in use calculated using six-years (2011: seven-years) cash flow
projections. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations
are that the Group believes that (1) the interested party transactions
mandate would not passed by the shareholders of KBCF shortly and
(2) the licenced properties, plant and equipment can be licenced
to other party after the licence agreement is expired for the further
periods over the remaining useful lives of the licenced properties,
plant and equipment at a licence fee income based on incremental
growth rate of 6% (2011: 6%) per year. The discount rate used in
measuring value in use was 7% (2011: 5%). Based on the review, no
impairment loss is recognised.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of licenced properties, plant and equipment to exceed their aggregate
recoverable amount.

RZZT——F/\A=H - Kingboard
Copper Foil Holdings Limited ([ KBCF |
[ HIEAN])(KBCFAREE —f L
MK B AE)K— MM E AR g EER

BERRR(ABIE=TT) ([ EXE
ADRILERER R AEBAEN

—E—FAA-AE-ET—=£)
A=+ — B 1L R R A2
KBCF{ 5 4 7 R ) 8 5 B s 2R i
m -

() ERBELNYE - BEARERE &

EINZEE

(i) FH EARNETE  BES
FEmRESEE K

(iii {FFMES - ER TR &
BEINMEZ A EAMRERRE

It

ERIRERERYE  BELEHER
MIsE23 Fril % 4 A 17 & M (S
A& A AES A10,000,000/8 7T * /B
REEERPE&EAEAEN - 1BEA
KBCF 1 £ 55 5 485 38 e = A W A A9 52 A
e 1S B KBCF A JEIE AR IR B A4
MEENBEENANZALTRSEEE
HRE (FRE40) RARERBLAEFIZE A £
SRENE,/ NEKBCFRAFHE=ZHFE
FIHERE - Bt - HEFERYE - K
ERBEENDEAME  BENEE
HTEREFEREE -

NEBBEANE(CE—F  +5)R
EREBHFENFEREE  =HEEE
FERYE  BEREENAREESEE -
FREEFENEZBRRANEBERE
1) RFE A LR BEERHATGE
KBCFR B iE M2) IR EF B ipzE
WiE - RIEFERME  BEMEETR
BT ERATFHAREEMAER - %
HEFRABERARETFERIZEON( T ——
F 6% ET - fEFRAEERTAN
WIBREIT%(ZE——F : 5%) ° IRIEE
BIER - WEERRERSE -

EEERE CRHZFERNAEER
EHT S ERERERAME - BERR
BHRREAREBBAT SR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

=,
19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. FA{HEERE
All of the Group’s prepaid lease payments are prepaid for leasehold AEE2IEMNBERIES BB BRI
interest in medium-term leasehold land outside Hong Kong. FREATR 40 -t 2 TR FROE -
2012 2011
—F-=F —F—F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHxT FiBT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HBEDTAT
Current asset MEEE 11,841 7,758
Non-current asset IERBEE 499,267 396,987

511,108 404,745
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS  20.

JHHERE

2012 2011
—EB-——fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Available-for-sale investments comprise: A ERERIE
Listed equity investments, at fair value: EHRERATFEIIE)
— equiity securities listed in Hong Kong —REB LT 2 IRARFE S
(note a) (Mfz¥a)
Listed bond securities, at fair value EHERES - BATE
(note b): (M3EDb) -
— listed on the Stock Exchange and issued by — B R P ETRIF R
a listed issuer in Hong Kong with fixed BB ETREITARLT
coupon interest at 13.875% per annum BEBEFB13.875E2 7 EF
and maturity date on 23 November 2017 =28 WHR-T—+F
+—AZ=+=HZH
— listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities —RITIEBEERSER
Trading Limited (“SGX”) and issued by ANRIF3FT]) £t
a listed issuer in Hong Kong with fixed BB LEWBITAET R
coupon interest at 6% per annum until —E—RF+A=Z++tH
27 October 2015 and at 4.885% per FEEFECEZEER
annum over 5 years United States Treasury B mMR=ZFE—hF+A
bonds rate from 28 October 2015 to “HNEBE-Z-FTF
27 October 2020 and at 5.638% per TAZt+HBILEABER
annum over 3 months London Interbank HFHEREBEESH M
offered rate thereafter on perpetual basis 4885 ETERE -
H1gF BIR3E ARBERTT
[F) 2 47 E.1N5.638 /2 2
KAMEES
Unlisted equity investments, at cost: FE TR E (3R ANBI{E) -
— private equity investment in Hong Kong —REBZLERAIRE
(note c) (Mf=Ec)

At the end of the reporting period, all listed available-for-sale
investments are stated at fair value. Fair values of the listed bond
securities are determined by reference to the valuation provided by
the counterparty financial institutions based on their own valuation
techniques because of lack of an active market. The unlisted equity
investments are stated at cost less impairment as their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.

407,594 637,530

498,420 -

271,635
157,492 151,342
1,063,506 1,060,507

RREPHEERER - BEAIHLE £
MREBRAFEIE - ARNGRZIEE
Mm% EMEFESFATHENIE2ER
S e REBREEGET ARG
BEE - ARIFLTRARENATFE
TR SEETE - BURRK AR IR ED
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(continued)

Notes:

() Included in the listed investments as at 31 December 2012 are
HK$314,634,000 (2011: HK$463,970,000) from one security listed in Hong
Kong.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group purchased listed
bond securities issued by listed companies in Hong Kong. These listed
bond securities were classified as available-for-sale investments.

At 31 December 2012, the entire amount is from one (2011: one) listed
bond security issued by one (2011: one) Hong Kong listed company.

(© The amount represents the 19.67% (2011: 19.09%) interest in a private

entity incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is engaged in the
property development business in Hong Kong. The investee together
with other investment funds currently holds a number of properties in a
building situated in Hong Kong which is intended for redevelopment (the
“Redevelopment Project”). The Group’s participation in the Redevelopment
Project is 9.80% (2011: 9.51%) and the amount committed by the Group
amounts to US$21,000,000 (approximately HK$163,800,000) and for the
year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has contributed approximately
HK$6,150,000 (for the year ended 31 December 2011: HK$6,459,000). At
31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the investment is measured at
cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
s0 significant that the Directors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot
be measured reliably.

Included in available-for-sale debt investments are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional currency
of the group entities to which they relate:

AR I R P A

20. IHHEHEKRE

R—ZT—=ZF+=ZA=+—8 " £
TRERE-FREB LD ZESH
314,634,000 %8 7T ( =& — — 4
463,970,000/ 7T ) °

HEZZT——F+ZA=+—HLHF
B AREBEESLTARBTNE
TEHES - RS LMEFEHFDER
AHEERE -

R-T——F+-A=+—8 " 2%
BRE—E(ZE—F: —M)EBL
MRARETH—R(ZT—F : —50)
EfEHFES o

ZEEEN—EREEE LB SR
SN ZAEEREZ1067% (T ——F ¢
10.00% ) f&AE - ZIREH RN EBNSE
MEBRER - ZALEERREMIE
BHSHERER —RURBEZXNE
ZEMESNG  ZAERTER(E
EarEl)) c AEEL TR EENEIZ
9.80% (=T ——%F : 9.51%) &AE L
/421,000,000 2 7T (47 163,800,000 7
) BEZZ——H+-A=+—H
IHFE - RNEBH B 496,150,000 7T
(BE=Z—F+-A=+—H81tF
¥ 16,459,000/ 7L) c RZT—=FF
+-A=+—B8BRkR=Z—%+=A
=+—A ARAFEZEEEHEE
BX REESRAREASEFTEER
FE - MR ERAARRERE -

AHLEEBRERETIINEEER

United States dollars
Hong Kong dollars

ATT
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MR 2 hBe B LANE BERTHE 2 5/EE -
2012 2011

—E——F —E——1F
Amount Amount

S5 k|

’000 ‘000

¥ T

84,091 54,228

407,594 637,530




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

21.

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

AR I R P A

wiNE3 7

21.

FREEIHRE

Listed bond securities listed in SGX issued by
listed companies EHEHFES
Included in the amount as at 31 December 2011 is HK$160,288,000
(2012: nil) from a listed bond security issued by a listed company in

Hong Kong.

As of 31 December 2011, included in the above held-to-maturity
investments were fixed coupon bonds which carry coupon rate
ranging from 7.0% to 11.1% and the effective interest rate ranging
from 10.9% to 21.0%. The investments would be matured from 29
April 2014 to 3 August 2018. None of these assets had been past due
or impaired at 31 December 2011. All held-to-maturity investments
were issued by corporations that are listed in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, listed bond securities
intended to be held to maturity with an amortised cost of
HK$272,485,000, including the effective interest income up to the
date of disposal of HK$1,051,000, were disposed of prior to maturity.
The related profit recognised amounted to HK$23,728,000. Such
disposals were generally made to improve liquidity and to modify
the maturity and risk profile of the investments portfolios. As such,
the Group cannot classify financial assets into the held-to-maturity
investments due to tainting rules until 31 December 2014.

Included in held-to-maturity investments are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
group entities to which they relate:

ETRBETRHRMA LT 2

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
271,434

R-B——F+-A=+—0 %58
BIE—HES TAFRRTz—ELH
& % 7% % 160,288,000/ T (— T ——
FiE)e

W_ZE——F+-fF=+—8 Lt
BEERIHBRERENSEENT70E
ZEMAEREBNENF109EE21.0
EMEEEREES  c ZFHRAEIHA
NF_E—NFENA=-+ILBEE=Z
—N\ENAZH -R-_ZT—F+—-A
=+—B ZEEEVESAIRE -
FIERBEEBRERE S LT ARE
10

HEZZ——F+-A=+—HIEF
B B EEE ETESFEFNE
H H AT & 2 B 5K AR /272,485,000
BT BRRELEBAIENERFERA
1,051,000/ 7 * HHEERAFE 2 &
¥6/523,728,0008 7T - ZEHE— KA
ElRERBES MARKEAEG 2
ARERERE - Bt - NEBIRE X
ZERR—_ZE—NFE+=-_A=+—8
RIARBEEN EMEEDEEHER R
iéo

RAZIMREBRE TIAREEEA
2B ER AN G EEHEZ AR

2012 2011
—E-—F —F—

Amount Amount

&8 G-l

’000 000

¥ T

United States dollars

- 34,205
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

22.

23.

NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS

AR IR R M

wiNE3 7

22.

FRBET =

2012 2011
—E-CF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR

Non-current deposits for EREET
— acquisition of properties, plant and

equipment

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS/
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

This represents inventory licenced to the Licencee (see Note 18) for
the period from 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2013. Under the
licencing agreement, the Licencee may use, consume and dispose
of the licenced inventories which include consumables and stocks
in trade. However, the Licencee is required to replace and return,
either by way of cash or identical inventory with the same value as the
licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed during the licence
period to the Group at the end of the licence period.

The licenced inventory has been reclassified from other non-current
assets to other current assets as the licence period will expire on 31
August 2013.

On 7 February 2013, the Group entered into an agreement with
the Licencee that the value of licenced inventory used, consumed
or disposed by the Licencee during the licence period is secured
by cash and bills receivables of a related party of the Licencee with
a total recoverable value of not less that the value of the licenced
inventory used, consumed or disposed.
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HiERBEE  Hit
RBEE

IR —E——FNAA-—BE-Z—=
FNA=Z+ - ARBEEREAERNE
E(RME18) - RIFFEE R
EREAER  RAMMEREERE
5 ETEESRARESFE AR
i - RIRAEE A REY - EREAR
MBS ECER - AR ENRE
ERFEEEMRRNERTFERAKE
BEERRERFEERMECER - &
R ENERERTR -

HREREEAHENR T —=F/\H
=t—HER REERFEREMIE
RBEESHDBREMRBEE -

RIZE—=F"A+R AEEHER
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE —E——F+ - A=+—HIIFE

24. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting

24, EEFIIE

TRARRERERARREHEAE
R ITBRERBEE(BB) ARE

periods: mh > sE
Fair value
change of
investment Revaluation
properties of properties Others Total
REWHEZ
AT ESE YIEER Hith &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FA&T FAT FET FAT
At 1 January 2011 R-ZE—F—HF—H (2,566) - 7,671 5,105
Charge for the year REELH (800) - (1,106) (1,906)
At 31 December 2011 RZZ—F
+=A E"i——El (3,366) - 6,565 3,199

Acquired from acquisition of UK BEHTE A

subsidiaries (Note 37) S (Bﬁ #£37) - (94,778) - (94,778)
Charge for the year REEFZH - - (2,454) (2,454)
At 31 December 2012 R-E——4F

+=-—A=+—8H (3,366) (94,778) 4,111 (94,033)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial AT E 5 A ERE iR R 2 BT IE
reporting purposes: EERDAT -
2012 2011
—E2——F N
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FAT
Deferred tax assets BETIEEE 4,111 6,565
Deferred tax liabilities EEHRIAEEE (98,144) (3,366)

(94,033) 3,199

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses R EHEAERER  AEEH#

of HK$139,819,000 (2011: HK$101,967,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All tax losses can be
carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law the PRC, a withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary difference attributable to accumulated profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$2,784,805,000 (2011:
HK$2,217,066,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

B ARG Z KB AKRIEEIE
£ 139,819,000 L (=& — — F
101,967,000/ 7T ) ° B K 2 F 7
Z:E,HE\/E\U ’ E&ﬁﬁﬁ&wuﬁa Lﬁ%ﬁlﬁi/ﬁ
B o 2IFIEEIE ] BRI -

RESEMSFREARE BT N\F
—H B - A B A E A B R BB
AT BREUE B =k 2 A% SRR TR
oo AREMIAFEMEAR RS
R 2 Faks 2= %5 52,784,805,000/8 7T (=
T——4 : 2217,066,000/# ) » A
B AR ZFERERN G A BB HERAIEL
B J?IEZK%EWI%IJ%@%ET%
BoE BABREESEAETZR
A B SR B O o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

25. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 25. R—EBE QT2 R

2012 2011
—E-CF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Cost of investment in associate, unlisted REFE RG] ZIREKA - JEET™ 86,988
Share of post-acquisition loss and other W EEZ B R EM
comprehensive loss >HEEE (4,674)
82,314
Details of the Group’s associate at 31 December 2012 and 2011 is as R_E——FR-_ETE—F+=A1
follows: =+—A AFEEBEATZFBER
T
Proportion of ownership
Country of interest and voting Attributable interest
Name of associate Form of entity incorporation power held by the Group equity of the Group  Principal activities
rEEBEERERR
NG BREE MR LER REELH KEEELRE FEER
2012 2011 2012 2011
“E--f —F——% ZE--f —T——f%
% % % %
Linkfit Unlisted private entity ~ Samoa 29.67 19.16  Investment holding
B FLMLEER BED REER
KB Hotel* Wholly foreign owned  People’s Republic 29.67 19.16  Hotel ownership and
EREERLEEE enterprise of China operation in the PRC
BRAF NEBELE i A REFIE W R REEER
Linkfit (Qingyuan) Property ~ Wholly foreign owned  People’s Republic 29.67 19.16  Property development
Development Company enterprise of China in the PRC
Limited™* WEEALE EEINF RRERMEER
BR(FR)EHEERA"
* These companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of Linkfit. * ZENE BB ZEWNB AR -
+ The Group has indirect interest in the wholly owned subsidiary of Linkfit. + RNEEPREE 2 2 EWNB AR EREE
On 21 June 2011, the Group subscribed the shares in Linkfit for a RNZE——FXAZ+—H X£EH
total cash consideration of HK$30,000,000. As a result, the Group’s LA 4835 4 X {8 30,000,000 7% 7T 52 B Bt
interest in Linkfit was increased from 11.34% to 21.57% and Linkfit B - Bt - AREREEERS
became an associate of the Group. Accordingly, the Group’s 11.34%3E AN E21.57% - MR A7
investment in Linkfit had been reclassified from available-for-sale SEEE AT o Bt - AEEREEA
investments to investment in an associate. KERAHEEREENHDBEAR—HE

BERRZRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE —E——F+ - A=+—HIIFE

25.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 25.

Subsequent to the subscription of Linkfit's shares, the Group further
acquired equity interest in Linkfit for a total cash consideration of
HK$20,988,000. As a result, the Group’s interest in the associate was
increased from 21.57% to 29.67% as of 31 December 2011.

On 13 April 2012, the Group acquired the equity interest in Linkfit
for a total cash consideration of HK$214,906,000, at which time
control was passed to the Group. As a result, the Group’s interest in
Linkfit was increased from 29.67% to 84.94% and Linkfit became a
subsidiary of the Group (Note 37).

The summarised unaudited financial information in respect of the
Group’s associate is set out below:

B M5 R P a2

R—EBEATZER

(#8)

ERBEBERMDE  AEBENERS
£ {8 20,988,000 & T # — & Uk B B4
g A R-FE——F+-A8
=t+—HB > AEERBE QR NEZER
21.57%IE INE29.67% °

MR-ZE——FMA+=H  KEBEAR
% #8R(B214,906,0007% 7T Y B B 2% 2
e EFEENCERALEE - A
I o 7N SR B A B B RO B 25 P 29.67 % 1
INZE84.94% - HFEEK AAEEZ B
A (FIFE37) ©

AREREE A QR RIEEZI B ERR
2T

2012 2011
—E——F —E——1F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET
(Note b) (Note a)
(Mi7Ep) (HMttta)

Total assets BERE

Total liabilities afEmEs

Net assets BEFE

Group’s share of net assets AL B L — M E AR
of an associate ZEESRE

Revenue Uz

Profit (loss) for the period HREF (E18)

Group’s share of profit (loss) of an associate REEFEL—REBS AR EAR

for the period A (E1E)

Other comprehensive income (loss) BREMEmkE
for the period (BE)

Group’s share of comprehensive R E e —HEE A RIEIR
income (loss) of an associate for the period Hin 2 mizs(Ei8)

Notes:

a. The amounts in 2011 represented the revenue, loss and other

comprehensive income from the date Linkfit became an associate of the
Group to 31 December 2011.

b. The amounts in 2012 represented the revenue, profit and other
comprehensive income of Linkfit up to 12 April 2012.

861,649
(584,217)

277,432

242,162

7,576 (16,510)

Bt 5T

a. ZERZ T--EZ@%%EW%&%
BERRZAME_T——F+=
=+—HIEHEz s - EE&E%E
e

b. z%m T —FEHERTEE "

Eﬂﬂ+ B2zWas s F R E

m%EWm
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf #& ¥R & i &
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE —E——F+ - A=+—HIIFE
GOODWILL 26. BE
HK$’000
FET
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 and wn—ZE——F—H—H-
31 December 2012 ::ff¢+ A=1+—8HK
——F+ZA=+—H

27.

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill arising from
acquisition of a subsidiary disclosed as follows:

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to the cash generating unit (“CGU”) of specialty resins business
unit. The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU of
specialty resins business unit is approximately HK$238,000 (2011:
HK$238,000).

The recoverable amount of the specialty resins CGU has been
determined from value-in-use calculation. Goodwill is expected to
generate cash flow for indefinite period. To calculate this, cash flow
projections are based on five year periods financial budgets approved
by senior management. The key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations are the budgeted gross margin at a discount rate of
12% (2011: 12%) and growth rate of 5% (2011: 5%), which are
determined based on the unit’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. Since the recoverable
amount of the CGU is higher than its carrying amount, the Directors
consider that the carrying value of goodwill at the end of the reporting
period is not significantly impaired.

INVENTORIES

BRWE BB ARMEECHEL
BEANSFIERENT

RMEART S - AEDHE T RER
Ha%i‘%’hﬁvﬁééi sh([BReEE
B - DEETFHEERESSHZE
SELEBEMN 2 HERAEY /£238,000
Br(ZZ——4 : 238,000/7T) °

FREGRERSEL RN 2 TRE SR
EREEFEEETE - BHAES fﬂiﬁE&
HELRSRE - RtEEREE "

EREFRHAESR a@lﬁﬁﬂtb/ﬁzji
FHYREEREE - FREBEFEX
ZEBBRABEEMNER 2R NI

EEDHIH/12%(ZF——F  12%)
Kb%(—F——%F :5%) » JRZEN

BERBLEEBEMSRRHEE
E e MRREELBEN 2 TREERES
REREE  WEEAR  RREHHE
BREHCBHEREEYEDREAR
-

Raw materials FER
Work in progress &M
Finished goods I i
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A
FE
2012 2011
—g-—% —m
HK$’000 HK$’000
T it
697,680 754,798
259,307 379,879
302,164 256,061
1,259,151 1,390,738




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HlEZ —F——

27.

28.

FH-A=t—HLFE

I NVE NTO R I ES (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group changed the
use of certain of its inventories of approximately HK$712,707,000 and
licenced them to the Licencee (see note 18) for licence fee income.
Under the licence agreement, the Licencee may use, consume and
dispose of the licenced inventories which include consumables and
stocks in trade. However, the Licencee is required to replace and
return either by way of cash or identical inventory with the same
value as the licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed during
the licence period to the Group at the end of the licence period.
Accordingly, the licenced inventories are reclassified to other non-
current assets in 2011 (note 23).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES

AN
A

27.

28.

B M5 R P a2

F&w

HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HItHF
B - REBNREEER T 712,707,000
BTHFENAR  REEREAFRZ
E1FE - AREUEERRA (3E18) -
IRERIEE AR BEBEAER &
ARHEEETREFE  EHRBESHE
mMEBSFE - Am - REREREE
REF - EEEABCESSKEEER -
RN ENEREFEATEEARRA
GERNASESEE MRENFEERS
%Eﬁm~%%ﬁﬁ%mﬁ%@%ﬁ
cEHit - BEFRFENRZZ——F
E%“@ﬁﬁm#mﬁﬁémnﬂ@

BEZNREMEWRRRK
BANRERERRE

Trade receivables = E TN
Advance to suppliers TR FE RS 2 B
Dividend income receivables RIS B A

Deposits for acquisition of land use right for
development of properties held for sale (Note)

Interest income receivables

Prepaid expenses and deposits

Value-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable

Other receivables

FEMCR B A
AfNFEX EE

H At BRI

Note: It represents deposits paid for the acquisition of land use right in PRC. The
acquisition is expected to complete in 2013 and construction works are to

be commenced in 2013. Details are set out in note 43.

AREEER(TEER])

RERBIEHEMENRE LI
RSNz & ()

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHET
3,091,149 3,026,009
484,114 264,441

- 11,438

558,228 -
6,854 19,377
145,038 107,936
253,532 313,373
99,793 95,647
4,638,708 3,838,121

1t AU B A AR B 2 £ (s R AT =2 A+
ZE & o  BHZKER-ZT—=F3%
B - W= Z— = FRRER IR - ¥
(B HIEEAS ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AND PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group allows credit periods of up to 120 days, depending on the
products sold to its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis
of trade receivables based on invoice date at the end of the reporting
period, which approximated the respective revenue recognition date:

AR I R

AN ==

28.

RNEBRKRTEHBEFZEEHEEREAR
1208  BIATEEERMTE - RIS
HEERER BHEWRRZRRE
REZAB(HASERESHERBE) D
M

0-90 days 0Z90H
91-180 days 91£180H
Over 180 days 180H A E

Bills receivables of the Group are aged within 90 days (2011: 90 days)
at the end of the reporting period.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has an internal credit
grading system to assess the potential customers’ credit quality and
the Directors has delegated the management to be responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals for any customers.
Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed every year.
82% (2011: 81%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired have the best credit scoring attributable under the credit
grading system used by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$563,520,000 (2011:
HK$576,637,000) which are past due at the reporting date for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss as the Group considers
that these debtors are financially stable and the management has
taken action to recover the outstanding balances. The Directors are
confident that these amounts are still recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances. The average age of these
receivables is 145 days (2011: 148 days).
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2012 2011
s —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHER FT
2,004,334 2,036,420
1,030,254 942,207
56,561 47,362
3,091,149 3,026,009

REREEWRE R BRI SR E IR A
RE B (ZF——%F : 90A)
ZA e

EERMETAHELA - AKBERBER
AEHEEEBEEPZEREER
EFeIwEBBRERENEFE
EEEREREERZ EPZRE
RN BEEMN - 82% (=T ——4F :
81% ) EB AR E 2 B 5 B W iR T &
AEBAERAZERFRNE 2 &RRE

R -

AEEE FERERSRESEERE
X 4ABRTE(E 4563,520,0008 L(—F
——4% : 576,637,000/ 7T) * RREH
MEREARLEE - AEBEWERZ
LHEELREBBEE  REALRSE
ERE ZEEBAMERER BEER
[BEREURE REBEHNTTE - EX
e ZEHEDART THRE - REE
MZEBRBUESEEAEER - 2%
JEWER R 2 FHH BRI B1458 (22 ——
4 :148H) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AND PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired are as
follows:

AR I R

AN ==

28.

wHE R E B SRR Z Rk 1A
T

91-120 days 9121204
121-150 days 121&2150H
151-180 days 151&180H
Over 180 days 180H A E

The Group has provided fully for all receivables that are past due
beyond 240 days because historical experience is such that these
receivables are generally not recoverable. Allowance on trade
receivables aged between 120 and 240 days are made based
on estimated irrecoverable amounts by reference to past default
experience and objective evidences of impairment determined by the
difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group
monitors any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables since
the credit was granted and up to the end of the reporting period. The
Directors considered that the Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk of trade and other receivables, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and customers.

2012 2011
—EB——fF —E——1F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
109,554 92,159
255,235 278,476
142,170 158,640
56,561 47,362
563,520 576,637

BEERERE 2408 A £ 2 FEUER
RER B MAEESZERER
BRI EEEL BE o BRI T120%240
AZB SRR ZBE  H2ERT
RIRAEER 2 (AR T A B & 58 & IR (A
B RBERAEEETT B AR SR
ERAEMZEZETENEEBEEREE
B ESEE o

EETEIRUIRFRZ ATHELE - 8
ERRRHEEREREHMERE
B AKEERBESRUEREREER
ZEAES EERR - ARELES
E&EH 2B REMBRERERER
% BERAZEXISTREF D -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ - E——F+_-A=+—HILFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AND PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

AR I R P A

ESREMEWRERARR
FARREREREE -

RIEEHEZEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT

Balance at beginning of the year

Written off as uncollectible

Impairment losses recognised on
trade receivables

Balance at end of the year

FHEEER
g E A ATk e 2 SRR

B HRUIRRIERZ

e B

FREH

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$176,919,000
(2011: HK$178,928,000) which have either been placed under
liquidation or in severe financial difficulties. The Group does not hold

any collateral over these balances.

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments are
the following amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they relate:

178,928 173,046
(13,575) -

11,566 5,882

176,919 178,928

REEFREENDREZE SRR
Mo BESRR176,919,0008 T (ZF
——% : 178,928,000/ 7T) * & F A
REBRYABRUBERHMIAT 2FE - A
SEBRAZSERY B A TAEAR -

B9 R ERERREARERET
B S 0 5 R 2 1 B S A1
sHEZ 3 -

2012 2011
—E—C—F —EZ——4F
Amount Amount
KXl Gk

’000 000

¥ T

United States dollars
Japanese Yen
Hong Kong dollars

H
BT

134 KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED #BHEEBHRIERER AR

49,621 66,266
- 2,290
716,529 690,131




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ - E——F+_-A=+—HILFE

29.

30.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR
DEVELOPMENT

AR I R P A

wiNE3 7

29.

FREY=

AT COST BT E
Carrying amount of properties held for FERYEZRRE
development

In 2011, the Group acquired pieces of land in the PRC with medium-
term leases for purpose of future development for sale.

In 2012, the Group further acquired pieces of land in the PRC and
incurred expenditure in development of the properties. As of 31
December 2012, all the properties are still under development.

Properties held for development which are expected to be recovered
after next twelve months from the end of the reporting period are
classified as current assets as it is expected to be realised in the
Group’s normal operating cycle. Included in the amount are properties
held for development for sale of approximately HK$575,374,000
(2011: HK$248,486,000) that are expected to be realised after one
year from the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group received
the government grants of HK$21,833,000 (2012: nil) for property
development project in PRC. The amount received had been
deducted from the carrying amount of property held for development.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES

30.

2012 2011
—g—=5  -T——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T
248,486

—FT——F  AEEUFHEHTAE
FEIE L IERRERHERE

—E—F AEEEPRE-FSRE
T UMMEBRRELRS -R-F
——F+A=+—H FEWEDNF
B -

BRI RS BEARE 12 AR
B FERNESEARDEE  RE
BZEMEEPITRANEEEFLER
HEHE - 2o EEESIEREZFRE
Y H)575,374,0008 L (= ——F :
248,486,000/870) © TEATARE IR 4
RBEF—FRER -

HEZZ——F+ZA=+—HLHF
& AEE R EYEREE B WEK
f¥ & B)21,833,0008 L (=T — =4 :
) BRSHEERGERMERTDEAE
IR o

BR(Y)ERERA

IR

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries under
current assets
— trade nature

RREFRIA
—H5ME

MEEER R E RS

2012 2011

—EB——fF —F—
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THET
381,817
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

30.

31.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES (ontinued)

The Group allows credit period normally up to 120 days for sales to
its fellow subsidiaries. The amounts due are non-interest bearing,
unsecured and aged within 90 days at the end of the reporting period.

AR I R

AN ==

30.

W () RRKE2E

FRIE ()

AEEFREELTHERREWNB AR ZE
EH—MERA1208 - ZZEIZE
Be B RERE - HRERY ARSI
HEREBEMNOBZA -

2012 2011
—E—-—F —_F—

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHERT FET

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries under
current liabilities NGIES!
— trade nature, neither past due nor impaired —

m

The Group’s non-interest bearing amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
have repayment terms of less than 30 days. The amounts due are
non-interest bearing, unsecured and aged within 90 days at the end
of the reporting period.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group. At 31
December 2012, the Group’s bank balances carry interest at the
prevailing market interest rates which range from 0.01% to 1.31%
(2011: 0.01% to 1.31%) per annum.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had bank balances and cash that
were not freely convertible or were subject to exchange controls
in the PRC amounting to approximately HK$1,038.5 million (2011:
HK$1,503.4 million).

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
group entities to which they relate:

BB EIR TR R RS

-
BHME - EEHSURE

31.

31,061

AEERESENRARMBERRFAZE
HKHDNI0RA - ZFEENFIR/RER
B HRROABREHHEERER
EV90H Z A -

RITERERE

HBERSBEEASEEFEZR
cHAZE——F+-_fF=+—H R
AT S FEANENT0.01ER
131E(ZZE——F : 0.01EE1.31F)
B e

RIT
&
171

% B

W-ZT——F+-A=+—H K&
ErAEmALBERAIFEIINEE
BITRRZBITEHEIRED L
/£1,038,500,0008 0 ( =& — — 4 -
1,503,400,000/&7T,) ©

RITREBERE B/ T KEEEA
2B ER AN EEFHEZ AR

2012 2011
—EB——fF —E 5
Amount Amount
X} G
’000 ‘000

F ¥

United States dollars
Hong Kong dollars

e
BT
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 32. %% REMENRAKR

BILLS PAYABLES FEE
2012 2011
—EB——fF —E 5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Trade payables B SRR 822,925 966,122
Accrued expenses JEIREH 178,609 176,298

Payables for acquisition of properties, plant and  BEBY% - MEMHREZ

equipment FERTRRTR 47,542 37,877
Receipts in advance FEW R 144,176 101,223
Other tax payables H b e 18 132,866 146,323
VAT payables EERER K 104,798 114,794
Other payables HAth TR R 57,645 53,635
1,488,561 1,596,272

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

B S RMNERFREER RN HRE R
ERERZREOITT

2012 2011

—E——F —E——5F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FT

0-90 days 0£90H 629,534 767,426
91-180 days 91£2180H 156,957 157,324
Over 180 days 180H A £ 36,434 41,372
822,925 966,122

BEERNTFHEERAWNE (-2
——% : 90R) - AEEEEE N
RS SR RIR AT I OB B
ERRR POy o

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days (2011: 90
days). The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

AEEEMNER 2 REKY BHREHES
REARMNWAZAR(ZE——F : 90
H) -

Bills payables of the Group are aged within 90 days (2011: 90 days)
at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #42&

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

32.

33.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND  32.
BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

Included in trade and other payables and bills payables are the
following amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they relate:

B M5 R P a2

B 5 K HAEMNRK

BRARE

B NEMENRARENRBERET

SINEEEEER Y
FHEZHEE

United States dollars ETT
Japanese Yen H 223,080
/= /&=
BANK BORROWINGS 33. RITHEE
2012
—E-—F
HK$’000
FET
Unsecured: IR
Bank loans RITER 4,352,477
Trust receipt loans EFEUUEER =
4,352,477
Carrying amount repayable: AR TSI HRER 2 BREE
Within one year —FR 1,310,796

More than one year but not more than two years —4FLA_H{B BB F
More than two years but not more than three MELAEETBB=F

years

More than three years but not more than four ZF L HETEBAEE
years

Total &t
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1,583,338

1,083,338

375,005

3,041,681

4,352,477

EA-LICINTE

Amount
Gk
‘000

:F

13,609
288,623

HK$'000
TAT

4,101,140
43,293

4,144,433

665,261

812,506
833,333

1,833,333

3,479,172

4,144,433
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE —E——F+ - A=+—HIIFE

33.

34.

BANK BORROWINGS (oninueq) 33.

Bank borrowings at 31 December 2012 are variable-rate borrowings
which carry interest ranging from HIBOR + 0.9% to PBOC (2011:
HIBOR + 0.54% to PBOC + 1.8%) per annum.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings is 1.73%
10 5.6% (2011: 0.9% to 6.56%) per annum.

Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate:

B M5 R P a2

BITEE

RNZZE——F+=-A=+—8 - R7{&

BAEZEZEE  FMENTEERT
FEEFREMOIBEFRBEARBITHE
TE(ZT——F : FBROTRAERE
hno.54E =R EARBITRIE M SE) o

NEBBRITEEZERFE(NERF]
HIF) R ) EE N T FFE1.73E E£5.6%
E(ZZ—— F 0.9EE6.562) 1% -

RITEERETIINEEEREM
BEERAINE R EHE 2 TR

2012 2011
—E-——F —E——fF
Amount Amount
S8 ®F
’000 ‘000
T ¥
United States dollars e 60,675 5,650
Hong Kong dollars BT 3,632,572 3,669,414
SHARE CAPITAL 34. B
Authorised Issued and fully paid
EE ERITRHZE
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
BROEHE X RHEE ]
’000 HK$'000 '000 HK$’000
T FET T FAET
Ordinary shares of SRAE0.1087T
HK$0.10 each: 2 Em
At 1 January 2011, 31 RZZE—F—A8
December 2011 and 31 —HZF—F
December 2012 +ZA=+—HBK
—=——F+=A
=+ —H 20,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 300,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

35.

36.

SPECIAL RESERVE

Special reserve of the Group represents (i) the difference between the
net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
group reorganisation in 2006 and (ii) the reduction in the registered
capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary established in the PRC.

SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of the Company and the shareholders
of KCHL on 18 May 2007 and 25 June 2007 respectively. The
Scheme has taken effect after obtaining the approval from the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange on 6 July 2007.

The Scheme would be valid for a period of 10 years. The Board may,
at its discretion, grant options to subscribe for shares in the Company
to eligible participants who contribute to the long-term growth and
profitability of the Company and include (i) any employee or proposed
employee (whether full-time or part-time and including any executive
director), consultants or advisers of or to the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group holds an
equity interest; (i) any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors), any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;
(iii) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (v) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to the Group or any Invested Entity; and (vi)
any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity.

The subscription price of the Company’s share in respect of any
option granted under the Scheme must be at least the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option, which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (i) the nominal value of the shares
of the Company.
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AR IR R M

wiNE3 7

35.

36.

45 5! it

NEE 2RI E AR IREN B QR
ZEEFEENR _TTNFHITEEE
ErRF AUIEM BT AR BN EER
HZEWNEEE  Ri)—ERFRRIZAH
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE OPTIONS (oninueq) 36. BEABRE

The option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days from
the date of the offer for the grant of the option upon the payment of
a consideration of HK$1. An option may be exercised at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by the directors to
each grantee, and in the absence of such determination, from the
date upon which the offer for the grant of the option is accepted but
shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof. The
directors may, at their absolute discretion, fix any minimum period for
which an option must be held, any performance targets that must be
achieved and any other conditions that must be fulfilled before the
options can be exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
(excluding, for this purpose, options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Company) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
Scheme.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the share capital of the Company then in issue
unless approved by the shareholders of the Company and KCHL in
general meetings.

SEATARERERBELEBREZ
Bi#Ft28RA - BB NREVETE
MEICERE - BEBREARNESE
ERGBAMBARAZ AR AT
WEBEEMBE  AhEEBERER
HEsER A ARG - WREAER
TTERELBRAER L B HRF 14
ZARIE - WARZ B ZRPRILE
XHR - EEF 2ERBRZEAL
FEATERTR 2 BB LA A
ZEEHRE  FRATERZRBABR
AT ELMZR Tz pl 2 61

RIEZAT B 2 P A B LB A E (3L
I E N EIER R 8 R AR R
H A B S B RES 8) 2 (RRE RR2 B
FERBIRHE ) EITEE A TRITZARA
B in a8 A NS BB NI EZFT EIE
HEHETRMBEZ10% °

R B R AR RERE A B LB
T EIFTAR LM M ARITERAFITRE
ZBEBBEETER A TRITZAR
ARMNEE  &ETEBBARBTE
ZEEITIR30% °

PMEfAI+ Z{E A A R & 2 0 A TR H
ZEBEBRE(BEEITRRRITEZ
BEBRE)ETEMSETRE TH
TTZARRBIBMARE - NMEBBANRR
BREBITREAZ1%  BRIFERAF
MBI T 2 IR R A& # /& B E
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ - E——F+_A=+—HILFE

36. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 36. @%Eﬁﬂﬁg(%)
Balance at
31 December Exercise
Balance at Granted 2011, and Transferred Balance at price
Date of grant {danuary 2011 duringtheyear ~ 1January2012  during the year 31 December 2012 pershare  Exercisable period
H=5--F
tZR=t-A
R=%--% k=%-f R=%-2%
-A-H -f-A tZA=1-H
BHAH 2k REREH P HERER pis SRORE RS
Granted to Directors
KTEE
21 March 2012 - 64,000,000 64,000,000 (10,000,000) 54,000,000 HK$654 21 March 2011 1o
i S G565T 17 May 2017 (note)
I i)
ZE2-tERATLA
(W)
Granted to employees
KTER
21 March 2012 - 36,000,000 36,000,000 10,000,000 46,000,000 HK$6.54 21 March 201110
S S B54ET 17 May 2017 (note)
“B-—FZfCf-BZ
ZE-tFIATHA
(hisk)
- 100,000,000 100,000,000 - 100,000,000
Exercisable at the end of the year - 25,000,000 50,000,000
RERTHiE
Note:  25% of the total share options are vested immediately at the date of grant. MisE :  EREARELREE 2 25% I H B ERANRE

The remaining 75% will be spilted evenly into three lots and will be vested
at 21 March 2012, 2013 and 2014. The closing price of the Company’s
shares immediately before the date of grant was HK$6.3.

On 21 March 2011, the share options were granted and the estimated
fair values were approximately HK$114,945,000.

As at 31 December 2012, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Scheme is 100,000,000 (2011: 100,000,000) shares
representing approximately 3.33% (2011: 3.33%) of the issued share
capital.
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T——F T CFER-TNFE=
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RRABRDEIRTERE.3BTT

BEEREA—E——F=A=+—H
B S ELEBRENGETATEY
114,945,000/ 7T °
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36.

37.

fre B ERA M

wiNE3 7

SHARE OPTIONS (orinucq) 36. BRBRE
The fair values of the options granted are calculated using the Black- EEPELEREATEERER T —
Scholes option pricing model. The inputs into the model were as S RETHIRE T BENE - EXNE
follows: ASIRAT
2011
-4
Weighted average share price on the date of grant R B2 i E HK$6.46
6.46/57C
Exercise price 1TERB HK$6.54
6.54/87C
Expected volatility TEHERR IR 34.42%
34.42%
Expected life TEHASF HA 4.1105.1 years
41E514F
Risk-free rate 4 [ o | 2R 1.49% to 1.81%
1.49[E2=1.812
Expected divided yield TEHAR B & 5.66% to 6.18%
5.66/2£6.18E2
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of TEERR IR IR AN B A FRERBTIKIE
the Company’s share price over the previous one year. The expected BT EAMAENFHREEEY
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s TRIEEEN - TERRHRITREERE
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise VR BMREGHEL I -
restrictions and behavioral considerations.
The Group recognised the total expense of approximately HE-ZT——F+-A=+—HILHF
HK$30,847,000 (2011: HK$69,052,000) for the year ended 31 B AEBERARRRENELER
December 2012 in relation to share options granted by the Company. REMETR R X #85830,847,0008 L (=&
——%£ 1 69,052,000/ 7T ) °
The Black-Scholes option pricing model has been used to estimate N5 — TR AT R B B AR U R DA AT
the fair value of the option. The variables and assumptions used BEBREATE FTEEEBRER
in computing the fair value of the share options are based on the FEMANSHREREIIRESNRE
Directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies with different HETEL - BABREEEETETE
variables of certain subjective assumptions. BB T REEEMmE
ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. WHEKEB A F

In April 2012, the Group further acquired 55.27% equity interest in
Linkfit, a company engaged in investment holding whose subsidiaries
are principally engaged in hotel ownership and operation in the
PRC, from independent third parties at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$214,906,000.

RZE—ZFWA  AEERBELE=
FiE— SRR B 55,27 % R - H A
—RREERAT - ERBATEER
FRENEHEEREETEER  BeR
{B495214,906,000/ 7T °
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AR I R P A

wiNE3 7
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37. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. WEHBQ T«
(continued)
Linkfit was an associate company of the Group in which the Group BB R AR B4 A 29.67% i 2 Bt &
held an equity interest of 29.67%. Upon completion of the acquisition Al o A U B B B 55.27% A% HE 5T K
of 55.27% equity interest in Linkfit, Linkfit became a 84.94% owned % BERBSARREES494% 2 M
subsidiary of the Company. This acquisition was accounted for by the BAE] o fIEMIE A EFEARR ©
acquisition method of accounting.
Acquisition related costs incurred were insignificant and were PRELEZ HBAWBRALTEKX - RA
recognised under administrative expenses in the current year in the FERFAEEZEWRERAITRERETE
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. R o
HK$’'000
FAT
Consideration transferred: EHESMRE
Cash paid SRS 214,906
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities RUKBERHIRWERERZEER
recognised at the date of acquisition: BEZARE:
Investment properties "EME 138,100
Properties, plant and equipment L E e 514,622
Prepaid lease payments AR ERE 112,000
Inventories T8 5,407
Trade and other receivables and prepayments B 5 R EA IR R R IERF0E 8,539
Bank balances and cash RITEBRER S 9,467
Trade and other payables B 5 K H M FERBRFK (166,148)
Taxation payable JERTTRIR 4,819
Bank borrowings HRITHEE (133,457)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIA A B (94,778)
388,833
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WEMEE2EmE .
Consideration transferred EECRE 214,906
Add: Fair value of previously held interest in Linkfit m: 2R EEEER s A TE 115,368
Add: Non-controlling interest o SRRk RS 58,559
Less: Net assets acquired W TR EFE (388,833)
Outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of WE—REKBATZRER
the acquisition of a subsidiary: REEEYRY -
Cash consideration paid [RERE AR (214,906)
Bank balances and cash acquired BARITEBREIRS 9,467
(205,439)
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37. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 37.

(continued)

The fair value of previously held interest in Linkfit held by the Group
and the fair value of investment properties, properties, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments at the date of acquisition
was estimated by Roma Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
valuer not connected to the Group, by reference to market evidence
of transaction price for similar properties.

The fair value of other assets acquired and liabilities assumed
approximately the gross contractual amounts. The Group recognised
the non-controlling interests at the proportionate share of the net
assets of Linkfit.

The Group recognised a gain of approximately HK$30,377,000 as a
result of the remeasurement of previously held interest in Linkfit. The
fair value of previously held interest in Linkfit was estimated by the
management of the Group with reference to per share fair value of the
purchase of 55.27% as the control premium is insignificant.

During the year, Linkfit contributed HK$47,087,000 to the Group’s
turnover and made a loss of HK$36,356,000 for the period between
the date of acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2012, total group
revenue for the year would have been HK$12,725,389,000, and profit
for the year would have been HK$1,171,269,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2012, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

BB QB

RUEE R - ANEBRR5E 2B g
BZAVFERREDE BE - BER
RELIENEEFIRZ ATE - Tz
REEWEBE 2B IS ERGEME
FERFEARARNKLL2ZRUNER
SERZ Ti5RERME -

HinB WEEEREAEAGB L AFE
HAMAEAE NEBIZELEE
BEFERLL IR 2 JRE

N

Bl

HREMTERAFE 2B EER -
= BRI 4930,377,000/8 7T © FAl
BEZHEER , A TELAEREER
B2EWESS27% e 2 FRATFE
BET  RESEH#ERETHEAE
j(c

FRBBEEAEREETEER
47,087,000/8 70 + A UNEE A BfE =3
HAFE 45 3R |- HA 6 8% 15 85 18.86,356,000/8
ﬁ:c

W ERN —_T——F—A—B%K " F
WEEE EA%E 5 A12,725,389,00078
JC 0 i FE & F# A1,171,269,00078
T o HEERHMEMGAR - RVFERMIK
BR—_ZT——F—F—H%K  ~&EEH
BRI ER AFEBERCEEE - T
BHERRIREE Z TR -
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38. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

AR I R P A

38. EARK HAbEE

2012 2011
—E-CF —E——F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not BEETAVEARRNERE Bk
provided in the consolidated financial TEL BB 2 B AR ¢
statements for:
— acquisition of properties, plant and equipment ~ —BEWX - KR R EBE 130,513 87,399
— capital injection in an unlisted equity —FEIELETRAEE
investment 6,308 12,458
Other expenditure contracted for but not provided B :T4MER A4 A BT =
in the consolidated financial statements for: TEHBHE 2 EE Y -
— acquisition and other expenditure relating to —ERFERYEZWER
properties held for development HhfX 1,488,102 -
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of EFREERFTHRBEE Y
property, plant and equipment authorised but BB R E 2 BARS
not contract for 2,319
39. OPERATING LEASES 39. REALY
2012 2011
—EB-——fF —E 5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FET
The Group as lessee: REEEREMEA
Minimum lease payments charged to the FARGRE WS RN
consolidated income statement during the year 7 S 43k 3,270

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office properties and all lease payments are fixed and
predetermined.
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39. OPERATING LEASES (oinueq) 39. RLEMHEN W
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s future lease payments RREREARE R - REBRBEAT
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: BE 2 SRR BB N 2 BORNR

AR T ORI AT

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —F R 986
After one year but not later than five years —FRENAFEA 2,005
After five years AFiE 17,298
20,289
The Group as lessor/licensor: AEBELSHBEABEA
Rental income credited to the consolidated FERFFAGFERTRE
income statement during the year ZHAWA 26,449 17,036
Licence fee income credited to the consolidated &£ A& AGFA W R
income statement during the year EEFEREBIRA 120,000 40,000
146,449 57,036
The Group’s investment properties are rented to outside parties for REBEZIREMEDREREET TR
periods up to seven years at fixed predetermined amounts. HEETINAAL - HEIRRALESF -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for RBESHBERER - RIEEEREY
future minimum payments under non-cancellable operating leases in ¥ERFEEREE(MIFE18) 2 Al HiH
respect of leasing of investment properties and licenced assets (note WERY  AEBREBESHIEAER
18) which fall due as follow: VAT BRI B AR
2012 2011
s —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 133,374 102,789
After one year but not later than five years —FRERAFA 175,077 18,926
After five years ity 282,696 -
591,147 121,715
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39.

40.

OPERATING LEASES (.ntinueq)

The Group licences its Licenced assets to a committed Licencee
under the licence agreement as follows:

. Within the first twelve months of the licence, either the Group
or the Licencee may terminate the licence agreement at its
sole discretion, by serving on the other party not less than
one month prior notice in writing and paying the other party
HK$1,000,000 or such other amount as may be mutually
agreed in writing between both parties.

o After the first twelve months of the licence, the Group may
terminate the licence agreement at its sole discretion, by
serving on the Licencee not less than one month prior notice
in writing.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company and certain
subsidiaries (the “Defendants”) were named as a defendant in the
Supreme Court of Bermuda in respect of an allegation of the affairs
of KBCF had been and or were being conducted in a manner which
is oppressive or unfairly prejudicial to the minority interests of KBCF.
The petitioner is seeking an order to the Defendants to repurchase all
of the KBCF’s shares held by petitioner at the price to be fixed by a
valuer or Supreme Court of Bermuda. As at 31 December 2012, the
lawyer of the Company has advised the Company that the pleadings
have been finalised and both parties have provided discovery.
The next stage would be the exchange of witness statements. No
provision for liability has been made in connection with this claim by
the Group.
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AR I R P A

wiNE3 7

39.

40.

KERY
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41.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which was registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme which was established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000 (the “MPF Scheme”). The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group and
are invested in funds under the control of independent trustees.
Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the
establishment of the MPF Scheme are members of both the ORSO
Scheme and the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining
the Group on or after December 2000 are required to join the MPF
Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
and each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$20,000 increase to HK$25,000 effect (June 2012) for
the MPF scheme.

Employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension schemes operated by the PRC government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll to the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension schemes is to
make the required contributions.

Payments to the ORSO Scheme, the MPF Scheme and the state-
sponsored pension schemes of approximately HK$21,622,000
(2011: HK$17,359,000) had been charged to profit or loss. As
at 31 December 2012, contributions of HK$1,763,000 (2011:
HK$1,487,000) due in respect of the reporting period had not been
paid over to the plans. The amounts were paid over subsequent to
the end of the reporting period.

AN
A

41.

B M5 R P a2

RIRBERIFTE

AEE RN —IEIRER S RIRE
1 BIFEM 2 B BE A SRET 8 (B SR RET
2l MRS AR EAN =T
TE+Z AR zaHIEATE ST E
([eaFESETE]) - RSB EERAK
SECEESRRE  WIRENRBABIL
SNSRIz ES - MRV BTEEFE
ZRIE2NBERKAZIZIES - R
BARERKE RAEESE 2K
8 MAMERZZEZZTF+_Azz’
MAXE@EZ FEB VAL MATESET
Bl RIEMRTESTE BERHEES
& BBEEEBEBKRAS%RF EIED
- § AR WA LR A20,000%8
(AT ——F X ARIEE25000%
JL) e

TFEMBARZEEATEBFEEZ
BREMRNFTEKE - ZEHMERA]
ARFEXHZ KA L RARKE
g U BEREREN - AEBE R
EEITZE—RERINABHEN -

MR BB RERE
BhIRIRET 8I3 1+4 2 #3049 521,622,000
T (= ZE——4 : 17,359,000/% )
EEBEEPHBR R ——F+=
B=+—8  RR&EHREE 82 H3%
1,763,000/ 70( ==& ——4F : 1,487,000
BI) WA FZERTE - ZERER
SRS RE DT -
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BEAETRS
The Group entered into the following significant transactions with REBEEE A THEERETZEARL
related parties during the year: ST -
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
() Sales of goods and drilling services provided (i) [AI[E ZHIE Q7]
to fellow subsidiaries $HE S m MR B FLAR TS 1,618,568 2,026,694

(i) Purchase of goods from fellow subsidiaries (i) [1[F Z B A FHRE S R 841,381 728,941

(i) Sales of laminates and copper to a (iif) A E AR AR A F]
shareholder with significant influence over BESATENHBRRIEE
ultimate holding company E iR & i 980,479 838,256

(iv) Purchase of drill bits and machineries from a  (iv) A% &AR3EAL A 7]

shareholder with significant influence over ASKFENNRE
the ultimate holding company FROESER K ik 25 160,931 170,792

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments at 31
December 2012 were amounts due from a shareholder with
significant influence over the ultimate holding company arising from
sales set out in item (iii) of approximately HK$258,417,000 (2011:
HK$250,473,000) which was in trade nature. The Group allowed
credit periods of up to 120 days, depending on the products sold to
its related parties.

Included in trade and other payables at 31 December 2012 were
amounts due to a shareholder with significant influence over the
ultimate holding company arising from purchases set out in item (iv) of
approximately HK$39,372,000 (2011: HK$51,452,000) which was in
trade nature. The related party offers credit periods of up to 120 days
to the Group.

Trade receivables from or trade payables to fellow subsidiaries relating
to item (i) and (i) are set out in note 30.
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Hi KRR REMNFEREENE S
ME 7 RN —BEHERIERARAER
FENMRRMA LM E)EHEEEEN
FIEH)258,417,0008 L (=T ——4F :
250,473,000/87T) - AEBREEA LT
REZEESREA1208 - BTATH
EZERME °
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42.

43.

AR I R

AN ==

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42  BEAXTXRZ @
(continued)
Compensation of key management personnel TEZEAEMS
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management FRN - EENEMTIETEBEAE NS
during the year is as follows: W
2012 2011
= i
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FT
Short-term benefits % ER A 81,285
Post-employment benefits RINERET 731
Share-based payments LARR R FE A5 3K 44,191
126,207
The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined with BEERFETBABZHEGZEEMER
reference to the performance of individuals and market trends. BIRBEMISGBBEETE
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING 43. REHBEEEH

PERIOD

The following significant event took place subsequent to 31 December
2012:

On 28 December 2012, Jiang Yin Guo Rui Development Co., Ltd.
(“Jiang Yin Guo Rui”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
received a written notice from Kunshan Land Resources Bureau
confirming that the bid made by Jiang Yin Guo Rui of approximately
RMB690,770,000 for the land use right in respect of the land with a
site area of 146,039.8 m?2 situated at Kunshan Development Zone,
Kunshan, Jiangsu, the PRC (the “Land”) through a transfer by public
listing process organised and held by Kunshan Land Resources
Bureau was successful. It is a condition of the acquisition of the land
that Jiang Yin Guo Rui shall enter into a land transfer contract with
Kunshan Land Resources Bureau (the “Land Transfer Contract”) on or
before 11 January 2013, failing which the acquisition shall fall through.

The Group intends to acquire the Land for the purpose of future
development for sale. The lease term is 40 years with respect to
the portion for commercial use and 70 years with the respect to the
portion for residential use, both commencing from the date on which
the Land is to be delivered to Jiang Yin Guo Rui in accordance with
the Land Transfer Contract.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period on 4 January 2013,
Kunshan Land Resources Bureau and Jiang Yin Guo Rui entered into
the Land Transfer Contract. Transaction details are disclosed in the
announcement dated 15 January 2013.

UWTEZEEHR_ZT—=—F+=-A
e Rl = P 5 2

RZZB—=—F+=—A=+N\A ' KA7A
2EWNBEBRARIERIGEXAR AR
(MTEeRE ) EERLUTREERBZ
EHRM BRIERBEEBRELTER
T ERBATEN 2 AL EEF
B BA 49 N R #5690,770,000 7T 1% 15 62
MARETEE RILTE L% R R
& 5146,080.8F Kz £ ([ £ip])
B iE A o BB+ 2 IS AT
B BR - E—=F—A+—H=
HEINTBRLERBR L HEER
(TtihzEAR]) > TRWEE &
u)/(o

REBBRWELIERRHEEERZ
- MEMBFRERERZ LM E B
405 > RIEEERBEZ LM E /70
F - MEAHIHREBELHEERARR
NP IRERE QRS -

RERREERER  R-F—=F—A
mA - BLmELEEREETRERRT
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—E+-A=t—BILEE

44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 44,

COMPANY

The financial information of the Company as at 31 December 2012

and 2011 is as follows:

RRRZHBER

Total assets BERE
Investment in a subsidiary R B AR ZIEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A R FIR
Other receivables and prepayments H Ao R R R FE A 3E
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBREIES

Total liabilities afE4es
Other payables Hh FERTAR R
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHTB A RIFIA
Bank borrowings RITEE

Net assets BEFE

Capital and reserves A& A R
Share capital (note 34) B A (P 5E34)
Reserves (note) b (M3E)

Total equity k]
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ARBRZE—ZFRZF——F+=
A=+—RAZHBERNT :

2012 2011
—E-C—F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FiT
5,711,740 5,711,740
9,771,960 9,252,172
70,504 18,003
234,552 205,664
15,788,756 15,187,579
68,996 58,526
3,820,655 3,647,257
4,072,237 3,455,555
7,961,888 7,161,338
7,826,868 8,026,241
300,000 300,000
7,526,868 7,726,241
7,826,868 8,026,241
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44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 44. AAQATZBEEE )

Co M PANY (continued)
Note: e
Share
Share options Hedging Special Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BEB
RAEE RAERE HihERE IR REEA ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET FET FHET
(Note)
(Fiisr)
At 1 January 2011 RZF——F—A—-A 1,097,104 - (8,067) 5,427,130 655,215 7,171,382
Gain on cash flow hedging instruments REREET T AUES - - 8,067 - - 8,067
Profit for the year REEHF - - - - 1,317,740 1,317,740
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERENEERE - - 8,067 - 1,317,740 1,325,807
Recognition of equity-settled share-based ~ FEZRIARZ A TZ A 38
payments - 69,052 - - - 69,052
Final dividend paid for the year ended EREE=Z-Z4+ZA
31 December 2010 “t-ALFEZREBE - - - - (540,000 (540,000
Interim dividend paid for the year ended ENEBE-F—%+=A
31 December 2011 =t-BLEFEZRERE - - - - (300,000) (300,000)
- 69,052 - - (840,000) (770,948)
At 31 December 2011 RZZB——F+-A=+—H 1,007,104 69,052 - 5,427,130 1,132,955 7,726,241
Profit for the year and total comprehensive AN EF| R AEE 2H
income for the year eyt - - - - 69,780 69,780
Recognition of equity-settled share-based ~ BERABRGT AN
payments - 30,847 - - - 30,847
Final dividend paid for the year ended EREE-T——%+=A
31 December 2011 =t-REFEZRERE - - - - (150,000) (150,000)
Interim dividend paid for the year ended BNBE=F—=F+=A
31 December 2012 =T-AIEFE2PHRE - - - - (150,000) (150,000)
- 30,847 - - (300,000) (269,159)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-A=+-H 1,097,104 99,899 - 5,427,130 902,735 7,526,868
Note:  Special reserves of the Company represents the difference between the Misr : AEEZERFEEABERENB AT

net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group’s
reorganisation in 2006.

AEFEER —TTNFETEESE
B RKEMETZARBRNEERE
Z R ZE -
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

—E+-A=t+—HBILEE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2012

and 2011 are as follows:

Place of incorporation/

Issued and fully paid share

Name of subsidiary registration and operation  capital/registered capital
BRI/ BETRAR
WERARER BRREELE R/ 2RER
Excel First Investments Limited British Virgin Islands* US$1
SERERRAR ERRRES 1%
KBCF Bermuda* US$72,250,000
BEE 72,250,000% 7
Hong Kong Copper Foil Limited British Virgin Islands* US$47,057,290
RBRAES 47,057,290% T
Kingboard (Fogang) Insulated Material PRC! US$7,615,000
Company Limited ! 7,615,000 T
BB (BRI BEMAERAR
Kingboard (Fogang) Laminates Co. Limited  PRC' 1US$29,466,000
B (FR)BERERAR el 29,466,000% 7
Kingboard (Fogang) Paper Laminates Co. ~ PRC' US$17,936,546
Ltd. FED 17,936,546 T
BB (B BRMRERAR
Kingboard Electronic Raw Material PRC! 1S$30,000,000
(Jiang Yin) Co., Ltd. HED 30,000,000% T
BEEFHHOIR)ERAR
Kingboard Laminates (Jiangmen) Co., Ltd.  PRC' HK$242,800,000
TFRERERERAR el 242,800,000/t
Kingboard (Jiangsu) Chemical Co., Ltd. PRC! 1S$32,000,000
BB IARAR el 32,000,000% 70
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AR I R

100

100

100

100

100

100

45. A AR EFENB AR Z
RZE—Z=ZFRZFE——F+=A
=+—H ARARFEMBRARZFHE
mT -

Proportion of the
ownership interest held
by the Group Principal activities
rEBARE
BARRERLY TEXE
2012 2011
“g-=f 2%
% %
100 Investment holding
RELKR
64.57  Investment holding
REBKR
64.57  Investment holding and licencing

properties

RERBRME ERRE

Manufacture and distribution of
bleached kraft paper
BERA HEAARM

Manufacture and distribution of
laminates

BERD HRRER

Manufacture and distribution of
laminates

BERD HRRER

Manufacture and distribution of
laminates

BERD HRRER

Manufacture and distribution of
laminates

BERD HRRER

Manufacture and distribution of
chemicals

RERNHICTER
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

EICC
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45. XRTETEMB AR Z

(continued)
Proportion of the
Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share  ownership interest held
Name of subsidiary registration and operation  capital/registered capital by the Group Principal activities
ML/ ERTRER LS
WEAREH BRREEHE R/ HREAR BEREELA FTEER
2012 2011
~B-Zf —T——F
% %
Kingboard Laminates (Kunshan) Co., Ltd. ~ PRC' 1US$32,010,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution of
EERER(EL)ERAT e 32,010,000%7 laminates
HERAERAER
Kingboard (Lian Zhou) Fibre Glass Co. PRC! US$13,700,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of
Limited HE 13,700,000 glass fabric
BEGEN) FEERERAT RERDHEREELD
Kingboard (Panyu Nansha) Petrochemical ~ PRC' RMB250,000,000 100 Manufacture and distribution of
Company Limited R AR #250,000,0007T chemicals
BEERED)AERRE RERDHEIIER
# These are investment holding companies which have no specific principal # WERTIREERAR - WHESEE
place of operations. DR -

! These companies were established in the PRC in the form of Wholly
Foreign-owned Enterprises.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year.

! SRR BECE A ETE
PR3 ©

ERFIIIRESRATEFEAKER

BHEEZARBINBAR - EFERR
FIHEAMMBARZHBEEBNILE

2 Y 28 B A A B T R
B o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

M E

- =
RESULTS ¥EiE
Year ended 31 December
BZE+=-A=+—HILEE
2008 2009 2010 2011
—TEENE —ETHNE —T-TE —T——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT FET FET
Revenue | 10,127,764 9,070,983 13,055,205 13,204,979
Profit before taxation BRI A 1,321,136 1,793,940 2,636,467 1,634,488
Income tax expense FriSHi (70,466) (128,117) (269,783) (176,650)
Profit for the year I FE T 1,250,670 1,665,823 2,366,684 1,357,838
Attributable to: EIHDEE
Owners of the Company PA/NEIE=Y =N 1,203,804 1,648,031 2,280,380 1,324,958
Non-controlling interests FEIEARFERS 46,866 17,792 86,304 32,880
1,250,670 1,665,823 2,366,684 1,357,838
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2008 2009 2010 2011
—FENE —FTTAF —T-FTF —FT——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAET FET
Total assets BERE 12,804,358 13,699,718 16,439,825 18,061,463
Total liabilities BE8E (4,646,213)  (4,487,190) (5,586,438)  (6,270,811)
Net assets BEEFE 8,158,145 9,212,528 10,853,387 11,790,652
Equity attributable to owners A GIEFHF A
of the Company FEfh i 7,268,942 8,327,709 9,869,990 10,744,986
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR R 889,203 884,819 983,397 1,045,666
Total equity BR4ATE 8,158,145 9,212,528 10,853,387 11,790,652
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2012
—E-CF
HK$'000
TExT
12,483,227

1,345,446
(179,505)

1,165,941

1,163,941
2,000

1,165,941

2012
—E—-—F
HK$'000
FHET

19,273,833
(6,383,147)

12,890,686

11,808,165
1,082,521

12,890,686




KB Bt Z# & 8 R & 3
KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

2nd Floor, Harbour View 1, No. 12 Science Park East Avenue, Phase 2 Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin, Hong Kong
E%/‘Bﬂé&ﬂ‘—‘lﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁ B5R 1258881 fE218

Tel 5% : (852) 2605 6493 Fax f8H : (852) 2691 5245

E-mail EEE] : enquiry@kingboard.com Web site #4811t : http://www.kblaminates.com
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